
~ 
Highland Community College Board of Trustees 

Retreat Agenda 

June 25, 2024 - 12:30 p.m. 

Robert J. Rimington Board Room (H-228) 

Highland Community College Student/Conference Center 

Freeport, Illinois 

Public access to the meeting is provided online via 

https://hi2.hland.zoom.us/i/88320472535?pwd=SmdzYiE3cDRVenFiaFBYRm5sV2YIOT09 
or by phone at 312-626-6799 using meeting ID 883 2047 2535 and Passcode 643643 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

II. APPROVAL OF TRUSTEES ATTENDING MEETING VIA ELECTRONIC 

MEANS 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

V. CLOSED SESSION 

A. Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance, or Dismissal 
of Specific Employees 

B. Collective Negotiating Matters 
C. Board Self-Evaluation 
D. Semiannual Review of Closed Session Minutes and Audio Recordings 

VI. ACTION, IF NECESSARY 

A. Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance, or Dismissal 
of Specific Employees 

B. Collective Negotiating Matters 
C. Board Self-Evaluation 
D. Semiannual Review of Closed Session Minutes and Audio Recordings 

VII. ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATES 

A. Budget Update 
B. Salary Increases for Administrative, Professional, and Classified Nonunion Staff 
C. Implementation of Compensation Range Progression and Salary Adjustments 
D. Institutional Vision for Equity Related to Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and 

Belonging (DEIB) Definitions 

Mission 
Highland Community College is committed to shaping the future of our communities 

by providing quality education and learning opportunities through programs and services 
that encourage the personal and professional growth of the people of northwestern Illinois. 



VIII. MAIN MOTIONS (ACTION) 

A. Academic (None) 

B. Administration 

1. Second Reading - Revised Policy 1.111: Board Member Attendance by a 
Means Other Than Physical Presence (Page 1) 

2. Second Reading - New Policy 3.072: Medical Withdraw (Page 3) 
3. Second Reading - New Policy 3.40: Disability Services Documentation 

(Page 5) 
4. Second Reading - Revised Policy 5.23: Technology Acceptable Use 

(Page 7) 
5. Second Reading - New Policy 5.231: Password Controls (Page 15) 
6. Second Reading - Revised Policy Appendix: Information Technology 

Acceptable Use Guidelines (Page 18) 

C. Personnel 

1. Revised Job Description: Dean, Humanities, Social Sciences, and Fine 
Arts (Page 27) 

2. Revised Job Description: Financial Aid Specialist II (Page 31) 
3. Compensation Adjustment: Vice President/CSSO, Student Development 

and Support Services (Page 34) 
4. Compensation Adjustment: Head Coach/Coordinator, Athletic 

Operations (Page 3 5) 
5. Compensation Adjustment: Technical Coordinator, Fine Arts/Theatre 

Technical Director (Page 36) 
6. Compensation Adjustment: Director, Information Technology Services 

(Page 37) 
7. Approval of Salary Increases for Eligible Administrative, Professional, 

and Classified Non-union Staff (Handout) 
8. Implementation of Compensation Range Progression and Salary 

Adjustments (Handout) 
9. Appointment: Agriculture Instructor (Handout) 

D. Financial 

1. University of Illinois Extension - Stephenson County Lease Agreement 
(Page 38) 

2. Intercollegiate Athletic Insurance (Page 57) 
3. Property and Liability Insurance (Page 58) 
4. Use of Agency Fund for Sports Center Repairs and Replacements 

(Page 59) 
5. Acceptance of Bid: New Agriculture Pump House (Page 60) 
6. Family YMCA of Northwest Illinois Child Care and Training Center 

Lease Agreement (Page 63) 

Mission 
Highland Community College is committed to shaping the future of our communities 

by providing quality education and learning opportunities through programs and services 
that encourage the personal and professional growth of the people of northwestern Illinois. 



IX. BOARD UPDATES 

X. OLD BUSINESS 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Mission 
Highland Community College is committed to shaping the future of our communities 

by providing quality education and learning opportunities through programs and services 
that encourage the personal and professional growth of the people of northwestern Illinois. 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-B-1 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

SECOND READING- REVISED POLICY 1.111 

BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE BY A MEANS OTHER THAN 

PHYSICAL PRESENCE 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves for 
second reading revised policy 1.111, Board Member Attendance by a Means Other Than 

Physical Presence, which is included in Chapter I, Board of Trustees, of the policy manual. 

BACKGROUND: The Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/7) was recently updated to 
include that a member of a public body may now attend a meeting by means other than in person 
(i.e., video or audio conference) due to unexpected childcare obligations. In order for the Board 
to permit a trustee to attend electronically due to unexpected childcare obligations, the policy 
must be updated to include this reason. 

No additions or revisions have been made since trustees approved the first reading at their 

May 21, 2024, regular meeting. 

BOARD ACTION: ----------------------- ----

Page 1 



1.111 Board Member Attendance by a Means Other Than Physical Presence 
(Revised ) 

In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act [5 ILCS 120/7), Board members may be 
permitted to attend, participate, and vote at meetings by telephone conference call or other electronic 
means under the following conditions: 

A. If a quorum of Board members is physically present at a Board meeting, a majority of the 
Board may vote to allow a Board member who is not physically present to attend the 

meeting by other means (i.e., video or audio conference) if the member is prevented from 

physically attending because of: 

1. personal illness or disability; 
2. employment purposes or the business of the College; 0f 

L a family or other emergency, or 
-• unex ected childcare obligations.-:-

B. If a Board member wishes to attend a meeting by other means, the Board member must 

notify the Board Secretary of the College before the meeting unless advance notice is 
impractical. 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Board of Trustees Chapter 
Prior; reaffirmed 7 /25/23 

Policy 1.111 

Page2 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-B-2 

JUNE 25, 2024 

IDGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

SECOND READING -NEW POLICY 3.072 

MEDICAL WITHDRAW 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves for 
second reading new policy 3.072, Medical Withdraw, which is proposed for inclusion in Chapter 
III, Student, of the policy manual. 

BACKGROUND: This policy outlines the process and requirements for students to request a 
medical withdrawal from their classes due to an extended medical or family emergency. This is 
a longstanding procedure and is recommended to be placed in the policy manual to ensure the 
process is documented and accessible. 

No additions or revisions have been made since trustees approved the first reading at their 
May 21, 2024, regular meeting. 

BOARD ACTION: _____________________ _ 

Page 3 



3.072 Medical Withdraw (Adopted J 

Students who are unable to participate in their classes for an extended period of time due to a 

medical or family emergency may request a medical withdraw. Requests for medical withdraws 

should be made to the director of enrollment and records through a written request explaining the 

circumstances accompanied by documentation from a physician or medical institution to verify 

the medical condition, date of onset, and estimated length of treatment that interferes with 

attending and completing classes and assignments. Retroactive withdraws will be considered 

until the end of the fall or spring semester following the semester for which the 

medical/administrative withdraw is being requested. 

Students granted a medical withdraw may receive a grade of AW (Administrative Withdrawal) 

which carries no academic penalty and is not used in the calculation of the student's grade point 

average. Administrative Withdraw is considered for aU courses in a given semester and is not 

usually granted for select courses. Students will receive written notification of the decision from 

the Admissions and Records Office. 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Student Chapter 
Prior; 

Policy 3.072 

Page4 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-B-3 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

SECOND READING -NEW POLICY 3.40 

DISABILITY SERVICES DOCUMENTATION 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves for 
second reading new policy 3.40, Disability Services Documentation, which is proposed for 
inclusion in Chapter III, Student, of the policy manual. 

BACKGROUND: This policy is required by the Removing Barriers to Higher Education 
Success Act and is effective immediately. 

No additions or revisions have been made since trustees approved the first reading at their 
May 21, 2024, regular meeting. 

BOARD ACTION: _____________________ _ _ 

Page 5 



3.40 Disabilitv Services Documentation (Adopted ) 

In accordance with 110 ILCS195/I Removing Barriers to Higher Education Success Act, 
documentation of disability is required of all students registering with Disability Services at 
Highland Community College. It is the responsibility of the student to provide information which 
verifies their condition meets the definition of a disability as defined by laws such as Section 504 
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and the ADAAA 
of 2008. Student accommodation requests for disability services and accommodations will be 
considered on an individual, case--by-case basis through an interactive process. The College will 
determine if the recommendations are reasonable and appropriate for each student. In 

accordance with federal and state law, additional documentation may be required as outlined in 

the procedural handbook. Disability documentation is maintained by Disability Services separate 
from academic records. 

The following documentation is sufficient to establish that an enrolled or admitted student is an 

individual with a disability: 

• Documentation of an Individualized Education Program (IEP) in effect immediately prior 
to exiting high school. 

• Documentation of services or accommodations provided under a Section 504 Plan 
provided to the individual pursuant to Section 504 immediately prior to exiting high 

school. 
• Documentation of a plan or record of service from a private school, a local educational 

agency (LEA), a State educational agency, or an institution of higher education provided 
under a Section 504 plan. 

• A record or evaluation from a relevant licensed professional finding that the individual 
has a disability. 

• A plan or record of disability from another institution of higher education. 
• Documentation of a disability due to military service in the uniformed services. 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Student Chapter 

Prior; 

Policy 3.40 

Page 6 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-B-4 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

SECOND READING - REVISED POLICY 5.23 

TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves for 
second reading revised policy 5.23, Technology Acceptable Use, which is included in Chapter 
IV, Finance and Facilities, of the policy manual. 

BACKGROUND: The recommended changes address regulatory and audit requirements for 
the inclusion of technology use and security provisions in College policy. This language has 
been updated and transferred from the policy Appendix Information Technology Services 
Acceptable Use Guidelines to be included in a more succinct and easily identifiable location. 

No additions or revisions have been made since trustees approved the first reading at their 
May 21, 2024, regular meeting. 

BOARD ACTION: _____ _ ________________ _ 

Page 7 



5.23 Technology lcccprable Use (Revised ) 

A. Seo 1e: 

This lOlic, defines the acce table use o • crated and 
mana •ed b H_i •hland Communit\, Colle sons 
accessing or using Highland's technolOt!\ resources, including all emplo\ ees, 
students affiliates, volunteers. or visitors at the College. hereafter referred to as users. 
This policv is included in the Student Code of Conduct. 

I . In order to promote excellent information and g~twork securit, posture for Highland 
Communit\, College. users must comph with institutional and external standards for 
a 1ro riate use whether on cam )US or from remote locations. 

2. The ur ose of this olic, is to outline the acce ,table use of com utin , resources and 
am information maintained in an, fonn and an medium within the College's 
computing resources and explain violations of acceptable use. Additionall ,. all 
creation. processing. communication. distribution. storage. and disposal of 
information b • , , • • f college reso - , resources are 
covered b \ t lements all a s includin • 
harassment. student and licies. and 
FERP A. as well as applicable federal and state laws. 

3. Highland Communitv College values the privac1, rights of all individuals using its 
computing resources. As a usual business practice. Highland does not routine! , 
monitor individual usage of its computing resources. Nonetheless. users should be 
aware that all com utin • resources are the 1ro lertv of Hiuhland. As such the colle ,e 
ma, access and monitor computing resources and anv information stored on or 
transmitted through those computing resources. for lel!itimate business puo1oses 
including. but not limited to, svstem monitoring and maintenance. complying with 
le •al re uirements. olice investi ations. investigatinµ securit, incidents. and 
administering this or other Highland olicies. Further to rotect s, stems on the 
Highland network, the college ma) . without prior notice if deemed necessarv. remove 
compromised devices from the network, block malicious traffic from entering the 
network. and prohibit devices within Hi l!hland's network from connecting to known 
malicious outside entities. 

L User Accounts: 

I. The use of Highland's computer s\ stems and network requires that the College issue 
a user account. Even computer user account issued b) Highland is the responsibilit, 
of the erson whose name it is issued. Users are res onsible for am activit, 

ori t;inatin l.! from their accounts that wbi~h the, can reasonabl , be ex ccted to control. 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities Chapter 
Prior; reaffirmed 5/24/22 

Policy 5.23 

Page 8 



Under am circumstances. accounts and passwords may not be used b): persons other 
than those to whom the Hil!hland Network Administrator has assigned them. In cases 
when unauthorized use of accounts or resources is detected or suspected, the account 
Q_wner should change the password and report the incident. 

2. College recognized clubs and student organizations ma\ ge issued a user account. 

Club advisors shall designate a particular person(s ) (e.g .. club president) authorized to 
act on behalf of the club or organization. This person(s ) is responsible for all activit\ 
on the account and will be subject to College disciplinarv procedures for misuse. 

3. The college em lovs various measures to rotect the securit\ of its com utin 
resources and its user's accounts. Users should be aware. however, that the college 
cannot guarantee securit and confidentialih. Users should therefore engage in "safe 
computinµ" practices using long complex passphrases. emploving Multi-Factor 
Authentication. and ~uarding their passwords and MF A methods. 

D. L'ser Responsibilities. 

Users of Highland Communit) College's technology resources have a shared 
responsibilit • with the Collel!e's 1nformation Technolog ~~rvices staff to maintain the 
integritv of S) stems. services. and information. 

1- User responsibilities include: 

a. '.I-a-ase-1:lw--bi:Htege-&;t~'fltlOf.&~:i.y,.:ssffi1-fees-+(,"trl;}fitlfitb-B:;::t:tttlr:fflr w l l ege bu::,itte55 
etlfW§e5-;--aH&-OOHSistent with the ten11S of tltl-5::iffiH(f)'.:,:z\-l-l college business is--t&--9e 
~1ducted on colle~e;; ovmed or thrnuul1 collet!c contrackd (odetc and rcJ?IB€e 
-w-ith-+w.-~ ser-vi·Bt;&....YseF'-s·1')Crsonal uctivittt.,~-+1€e&1o-\l!',e-OOH-Htehlanti 
'i{..!.(,-'£.l_,H;:cs~1-')'",·n·ri-€18:l8-i:!-ffi&; eara-s~...:::--!:ffitl-fl-evi--e-cs-: J I _L l: I I I _ • 

tcchnolom resources responsibly and consistent with the tenns cl:_this policv. 
1_!sers ad,nm, led!!c colk:!C-_QWll<.'d de,·ices and colle:.!e-contracled services an: to 

be primarily us<xU01:..i;~1lh.:gc_h_usiuc~. and any i11cifi~H!<-!l non-busi!1cs~ use will 
be included in the <:ollcgc·s.data retention schedule and subkct to ctilkl.!.c_FOIA 
rcyucsts. 

b. To access on!\ files and data that the user owns. that are publicl v available. or to 

which the user has been given authorized access bv the data owner. 

£.:.._ To use onh legal versions of cop)l'i ghted software in compliance with vendor 
license agi eements. 

cl_J'o comnh with Collel!e. federal. state, and local re 1 l1lations re •ardin° access and 
use of information resources (e.g .. College policies regarding the sensitive 
information and dissemination of information outside the campus, Federal 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities Chapter 
Prior; reaffirmed 5/24/22 

Policy 5.23 

Page 9 



Copvright Act. The Famih Education Rights and Privacy Act, Gramm-Leach
Blilev Act. Red Fla!.!. HIP AA. codes of 1rofessional res onsibilit . etc .. 

e. To kee technolo, accounts com uter. network. and a lication secure: 

I. Lock Highland devices when leaving unattended. 

2. f>.e--.H.et.-s.are-peysonal credentials or privileges with others. 1\ccess to perso;q.al 

teehnology--resetlfCes-i-s--rutHffifl-SftH=ahlecAcccss lo tcdrnologv rcs(1un.:cs_ is not 

transforabk. lJs~mamcs. pass\, Prds. or pri\·ikges arc not to be shared with 
others. unless specifkd in Highluncl"s Password P<.)licv. 

3 Report suspected unauthorized access tu a supervisor or the Infonnation 
Technolo 1 • Services de artment. 

4. Allow all ITS Department software and security patches to install. 

&.-f To keep all institutional data in safe-keeping. Specifica1h . I information 
containing any personalh identifiable information (PII) or data of students. staff 
or others should not leave the institution in a di l!itall v unsecured method and 
~hgul<l alwa_y§ Q~ stQr~d on the college's , .;--\ .ot-k I l•l+-i:ifld...(.:;.: 1 storage drives. 

~- To ensure dicital content is com Iiant with other Colle •e olicies. co vright laws. 
and a Jlicab]e local. state. federal Jaws includin . but not limited to: Americans 
with Disabilities Act and Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0). Published 

di 1ital content is not to be used for commercial purposes or for activities not 
related to the purnoses of the College_ without written authorization from the 
College. 

h. • service. or when chan cin , 

an existin ice or functi . tions are if the service or 
function do not. in any way. interface with technologJ . 

1. No user shall seek to hold Highland Community College liable for damage 
resulting from unauthorized interception. use. misuse, damage or destruction of 
information resources. Each authorized user sha11 hold Highland Communit 
College hannless and indemnify it for am expense or loss caused by their own 
unauthorized interception. use. misuse. damage. or destruction of information 
resources. or by their violation of this nolicv. 

2. Violations of this Po lie) include. but are not limited to: 

a. lllegal Use - Usinl! computing resources to upload, download. transmit. post. or 

store an) material or data that, intentionall y or unintentionall~. violates am 
applicable local. state. national or international law. or violates the rules. policies, 
or rocedures of the Colle •e or an colic •e de artment is rohibited. 

Transmittin . downloadin 1 • o ·al that infrin on 
an cxistin1! com right, trademark. patent. trade secret. or other legal ri l!ht using 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities Chapter 
Prior; reaffirmed 5/24/22 

Policy 5.23 

Page 10 



computing resources is also prohiqited. 

b_._ Threats or Harassment - Using computing resources to transmit material or data 
that causes or encourages physical or intellectual abuse. damage. or destruction of 
)ro lert . or that knowin •Iv causes or encoura •es harassment. ex licit or im lied. 

!.U}.rohibited. 

c. Transferring of Use- Pennission to use computinl! resources is !.!ranted to 
individuals and ma> not be transferred to others. Sharing of a personal 

username/ asswordEssi l!ned to an individual is expresslv prohibited. Use of 
another user's ID or seekin!! to access another us~r's account is )rohibited. 
Similar! \. individuals ma not use their user credentials to provide access to 
Hig!Jland's wireless network to other individuals. The following will be 
considered theft of services. 

l. Acquiring a username in another person's name. 

2. Usin • a µsername withQ!:!J t~ explicit permission of the owner an<J 
Infonnation Technolog, Services. 

3. Allowing one's usemame to be used b) another person without the explicit 
permission ofHi l!hland's ITS department. 

4. Using former s, ·stem and access privileges after association with Highland has 
ended. 

cl Mafo.:ious Content - Use of Highland computing and messaging s, stems to 
transmit anv material which contains malicious content. su~h. as malware or 
)hishin , scams. or an other content that ma, damage computer s,,stems or 
collect or misuse personal information is prohibited. 

e. lnterce tin!! Communications - Usin • acket sniffers. Jassword ca ,ture 
l!pplications. kc\. stroke lougers, and other tools that perfonn similar behavior or 
an fonn of network wireta in , on com utin • resources is lfohibited. Usin J 

such tools to diagnose. analyze. or mitigate oncoinl! service issues or securit} 
violations may be ennitted when conducted b authorized ersonnel. 

f. Fon. .. en or Impersonation - Falsi fying or removinl! identif):ing information on 
computinl!. resources with intent to deceive. defraud , or misguide is prohibited. 

Impersonation of other persons or 6rroups with the intent to harm is prohibited. 
l nauthonzt!d use of thL' C{1lleg\.•'s rc:!!.istt'rL'd Internet doma111 11,11111.:(~) is also 
prohibited. 

g. Unauthorized Access or Penetration Attempts t i.e., ''hacking" l - Unauthorized 
e ighland co ting resources. or a remote 

entitv usirn.! ohibited. Users must not use 
com mtin • r rations of an , com uters. 

n~~works. terminals, or peripherals. 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities Chapter 
Prior; reaffirmed 5/24/22 

Policy 5.23 

Page 11 



h. Service Interruptions - Using computine resources to pennit or promote activity 
that adverse! \ affects the integrit) or erfonnance of corn utin • resources is 
prohibited. Denial of service attacks. forged packet transmission. and similar 
actions ma, be permitted when conducted b\ authorized College personnel. 

1. Circumvention of controls - Deliberateh circumventing securit, controls or 
exploiting vulnerabilities at Highland or an\ other network from Highland 
equipment or network is prohibited. Gaining access b, exceeding the limits of 

assi uned authorization is likewise prohibited. Users shall not develop or use 
procedures to alter or avoid the accounting and monitoring of the use of 
computin l! facilities. For example. users mav not utilize facilities anon1m ouslv or 
b, using an alias. The\ ma, not send messages. mail, or print files that do not 
show the correct usemame of the user performing the operation. 

l · Excessive or Unreasonable Use - Users shall not use information technolog, 
resources to excess. Excessive use of information technolog) resources bv a 
particular user or for a particular activity reduces the amount ofresources 
available to satisf\ the needs of other users. Excessive use ma, degrade or 
jeopardize svstem functionalitv and result in sil.!flificant costs to the college. Some 
examples of excess use ma include writin a ro rram or scri tor usin l! an 
Internet bot to perfonn a repetitive task such as attempting to register for a class 
or purchasing event tickets online. 

k. Fraudulent Activit\ - Using computinu resources to transmit material or 
communications to promote a financial scam or wrongdoing is prohibited. 

I. Creation. interference with. or transmission of Wireless Signals - Creation of new 
wireless network re uires ex )licit ermission of Hi .1hland's ITS de artment. 
Interfering with Highland's wireless networks or attachinl! a device to transmit a 

Hi l!hland network is strictl) prohibited. 

m. Personal Gain - Com utin 1 resources are not to be used for commercial u oses 
or personal financial or other gains. 

!h______.!\buse of commumcation S\ stems - Sending unsolicited messages. which in the 
College's judgment. is disruptive to s stem resources or generates a significant 
number of user complaints is prohibited. This includes using am college 
communications ·stem email. text. a p or hone calls to sends am. bulk. or 
malicious messages. including commercial advertising. political tracts. or other 

inannmpriate use of system distribution lists. Bulk messaging should not be the 
venue for am aU-campus conversations. 

o. Institutional Image - unless resources are used to meet the College's purpose. to 

su_nport our educational and communih values. and/or to suprrort our lro ams 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities Chapter 
Prior; reaffirmed 5/24/22 

Policy 5.23 

Page 12 



an • • • • sers are prohibited from accessing, submitting. publishing. 

dis ostin 1 an defamaton. inaccurate abusive. obscene rofane 
sexualh oriented or explidt. threatening. racial!\ offensive, harassimt, or ille,:rn1 
material. 

p. Abuse of incidental personal use - Incidental personal use must not: 

1. Be illegal. 

2. Interf~!~ with a Hi 11hland emplovee's job responsibilities/work. 
3. Interfere with the le~itimate education and business purposes of Highland. 
4. Result in an) measurable cost to the College. 
5. Adverse! ,. affect the availability. integrih. or reliabilitv of Highland IT 

svstems or cause harm to the activities of others using the IT svstems. 
6. Violate this lie or other Colle 1e olicies. 

7. Be inconsistent with the Colleue's status as a state entit) and its non-profit, 
tax-exempt status. 

q. Ph\ sical Securit - Unauthorized acce s to. destruction. extension. or alteration 
of theft. <lama sical com utinu resources. includin , 
computer workstations. kiosks. card swipes. printers. audio-visual equipment, 
tele lhone/fa.x e ui ment. classroom equipment. or wiring closets is prohibited. 

This applies to all network wiring. hardware. and in-room jacks. Users shall not 
use the network to provide Internet access to an vone outside of the College 
community for anv pumose other than those that are in direct support of the 
academic mission of the College. 

E. Reporting & Enforcement: 

1. Violations of this Policy ma, be reported through one's supervisor. the Highland ITS 
Service Desk. or as otherwise )ermitted throu ~h Colle •e lie . 

2. The College ma,. without notice. disable or suspend access to the system as part of 
anv routine maintenance or concem over the safet\ and securih of the system. 

3. Users who violate this polic, may be denied access to college computing resources 
and ma,, be sub ject to other penalties. includini! financial costs, and/or disciplinao 
action, including possible expulsion or dismissal. Alleged violations will be handled 
throu!!h the colleL!.e disci )linarv rocedures a licable to the user. The colle •e ma, 

suspend. block. or restrict access to an account. independent of such procedures. 
when it reasonabll.J!J11ears necessar_y to protect the inte 1rit • securit\ . or 

functionalitv of college or other computinl! resources or to protect the collel!e from 
liability. The college ma also refer suspected violations of applicable law to 

appropriate law enforcement agencies. 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities Chapter 
Prior; reaffirmed 5/24/22 

Policy 5.23 

Page 13 



4. When Highland ITS becomes aware of a possible violation. an investi gation will be 

initiated with relevant campus offices, such as the appropriate Vice President. Human 

Resources. and local authorities. Users are expected to cooperate fulh in such 
investi ,ation~ wh~n re uested. 

5. 1 o prevent further unauthorized activit\ during such an investi l!ation, Highland ITS 

ma\ sus end authorization for the use of all com utin12 facilities for the user s 
involved in the violation. 

The College 1.vill provide rele¥ant access to and use of its technology resources, iechiding 

computers. communication devices, software, .md inf<mnatioa teehnology, in form and function 

suitable and appropriate for the College environmeRt. All technology resm:lfces pro11ided by the 

College are to be used in accordance with the College's Acceptable Use Guidelines. All 

utilization of technology resources shall be in compli.mce with all applicable laNr and 

regulations, and shall be in compliance 1Nith College policy. College guidelines aftd College 

procedures. The College shall take reasonable measures to protect technological resources, and 
to assure the teehnology resources are used only fer their inteneed pHffJOSes. The College retaiRs 

control and Sl:IJ)ervision of all techaology resourees ana resePt•es the right to moaitor the use of 

technology resource activity by any user. No user shall have an ffl<:pecta-tioR ofprivaey in his or 
her use of technology resources, including email messages and stored files. 

A. The College shall tfo1,,elo13 ane implemeRt Acceptable Use Guidelines and procedures to 

ensHre responsible use of the technology reso\:lrees, to assHre the security, reliability, 
integrity and availability of iRformatioH. aIKi to protect teclmology resources agaiRst 

accidental or 1mauthorized disclosure, and against unauthorizes moclifieation or 

destruetion. Sueh guieelines ane proce01:1res shall be coR:sistent •with the academie 
fi:eeclom rightti and responsibilities of faculty members, aad shall make appropriate 

provisions for the protection of aathorh'led proprietary research ,,,,,ork proel:lct produced 

by faculty members. The Administration and Policy Re·.iiew Committee shall re1,riew the 

Acceptable Use Guideliaes afld procedures annually aad shall promptly iafmm the Board 
of Trustees and the users of the technology in the event of any significant changes to the 

guidelines not mandated by State or Federal law. 

B: Sttufant irnd visit©r ttse ©f emnpttter base€! teeh1u,l0gy is 0t1HiR@El i1'l th@ Stt1d@1'lt C©d@ 0f 

Cendtt@t. Faculty and staff use of computer based technology is 01:1tliRed by applicable Board 

Policy aRdlor coRtractual language. 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities Chapter 

Prior; reaffirmed 5/24/22 
Policy 5.23 

Page 14 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-B-5 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

SECOND READING - NEW POLICY 5.231 

PASSWORD CONTROLS 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves for 
second reading new policy 5 .231, Password Controls, which is proposed for inclusion in 
Chapter IV, Finance and Facilities, of the policy manual. 

BACKGROUND: The recommended changes address regulatory and audit requirements for 
the inclusion of password requirements and security provisions in College policy. This language 
has been updated and transferred from the policy Appendix Information Technology Services 
Acceptable Use Guidelines to be included in a more succinct and easily identifiable location. 

No additions or revisions have been made since trustees approved the first reading at their 

May 21, 2024, regular meeting. 

BOARD ACTION: _ _____________________ _ 

Page 15 



5.231 Password Controls (Adopted ) 

A. Scope: 

1. This policy applies to anyone who has a Highland user account, including but not 
limited to: students, employees, volunteers, and consultants. This also applies to 

electronic devices and systems connected to the College's network including 

computers, network switches and routers, mobile devices, and laptop computers. 

B. Policy: 

1. This policy identifies the minimum password requirements needed to protect Highland 
Community College data and systems. The security of the College's data is highly 
dependent upon the secrecy and characteristics of the password. Compromised passwords 
can result in loss of data, denial of service for other users, or attacks directed at other 
Internet users from a compromised account. Compromised passwords can also result in 
the inappropriate disclosure of private data such as private student data, institutional data, 
and private employee data. To prevent unauthorized access to Highland's computer 
systems, users must practice proper password management. This includes: 

• Never sharing a personal Highland password with anyone. However, if ITS 

department supplied credentials for a shared account(s) are allocated, then only 

authorized users may know those credentials and their usage and storage be 

treated as personal credentials. 

• Never using a Highland p(ISSword for personal accounts. 

• Passwords should never be written down and left in plain sight. If a password 

must be written down it should be stored in a secured location. 

• Passwords should never be stored electronically irt plaintext. A password manager 

should be used to.securely store passwords electronically, 

• All users must enroll their accounts in and use Multifactor Authentication (MF A) 

when configurable. 

• Users must secure workstations when they are away from them. Devices will be 

subject to lockouts for inactivity after 10 minutes. 

• Users must change their password if there is suspicion it has been compromised. 

Users must immediately report suspected password compromises by contacting 

the ITS Service Desk. 

• After multiple unsuccessful consecutive logon attempts (e.g., incorrect 

passwords) the user's account may become automatically locked. Users may need 

to contact the Service Desk for account unlocking. 

e Proper password management also applies to external hosted software used for 

College business. If password standards cannot be followed with a hosted 

service, contact the ITS Service Desk. 

Highland Community College 

Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities ChapterPolicy 

Prior; 

5.231 

Page 16 



C. Standards: 

1. Passwords must meet the following complexity requirements: 

• Must contain at least 12 characters. 

• Must contain 3 out of the following charactertypes: 

o Uppercase letter 

o Lowercase letter 

o Number 

o Special character (e.g. !@#*&) 

• Must not contain the user's first name, middle name, last name, or username. 

• Must not match any of your recent previous passwords. 

D. Reporting & Enforcement: 

1. Violations of this Policy may be reported through one's supervisor, the Highland ITS 
Service Desk, or as othervvise permitted through College policy. 

2. Users who violate this policy may be denied access to college computing resources 
and may be subject to other penalties and disciplinary action, including possible 
expulsion or dismissal. Alleged violations will be handled through the college 
disciplinary procedures applicable to the user. The college may suspend, block, or 
restrict access to an account, independent of such procedures, when it reasonably 
appears necessary to protect the integrity, security, or functionality of college or other 
computing resources or to protect the college from liability. The college may also 
refer suspected violations of applicable law to appropriate law enforcement agencies. 

3. When Highland ITS becomes aware of a possible violation, an investigation will be 
initiated with relevant campus offices, such as the appropriate Vice President, Human 
Resources, and local authorities. Users are expected to cooperate fully in such 
investigations when requested. 

4. To prevent further unauthorized activity during such an investigation, Highland ITS 
may suspend authorization for the use of all computing facilities for the user(s) 
involved in the violation. 

Highland Community College 
Policy Manual, Finance and Facilities Chapter Policy 

Prior; 
5.231 

Page 17 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-B-6 

JUNE 25, 2024 
IDGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

SECOND READING- REVISED POLICY APPENDIX 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE GUIDELINES 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves for 
second reading revised policy appendix, Information Technology Services Acceptable Use 
Guidelines, which is included in appendix, of the policy manual. 

BACKGROUND: The recommended changes address regulatory and audit requirements for 
the inclusion of technology use and security provisions in College policy. This language has 
been updated and transferred to revised policy 5.23 Technology Acceptable Use to be included 
in a more succinct and easily identifiable location. 

No additions or revisions have been made since trustees approved the first reading at their 
May 21, 2024, regular meeting. 

BOARD ACTION: ______________________ _ 

Page 18 



Highland Community College 

lnformetien Teehealagy Services 

1~1eeeptable Use C uidelincs 

Updated 2020 

Highlan<I Community College provides technology resOl:lrees to meet the College's pl:!lf)Ose, to 

sl:!pport our ed1:10ational and community 1t<alues, programs and initiatives. Highland Community 
College's Information Technology Services organi2:ation's goal is to provide high quality services to 

the campus community. To ensure that owr high standafds are met, 1Ne 1:tave certain e*pectations 
regarding the use of technology resowrces at the College. 

Access to Highland C'omnnmity College technology resources computing facilities, net\•1ork 

services, servers. equipment, noftware, applications, i.-nfurmatioo resources, printiRg and soaooieg 

ser,iees, and user and technical support provided by Information Technology SeFYices staff is a 

privilege. not a right. This pri1t1ilege is e~Hended •o all users faculty, staff, students, trustees, 
alumniJae. affiliated individttals and organizations, partner non profits, gH-ests, and Pre K 12 schools. 
Aceeptiag access to this techRelogy carrier; aH associated eK):lectation of responsible aed acceptable 
¼:ISe-, 

This ''Acceptable Use Guidelines" doelifnent deserihes activities that Highlaaa Commueit)1 Cellege 

coAsid~rs acceptable use, as well as ·,iolations of use, of technology resources. The eKamples listed 
are not e3ChaH-stive and may change from time to time as technology aRd applications chaAge. The 

exan1ples are J:lrovided solely for guidance to iisers. If yow are Hnsure whether any 1:me or action is 

permitted, please contact the Director, Iefennation Teclmolegy Services fer assistanetl at 815 599 
M-80-, 

While there are eases ifl: which the use of technology resorn:ces is deemed not rcstJofl5ible or not 
acceptable, there are also more serioHs cases in v,rhieh teclmology resoH-rces are wsed in the conduct 

of behaviors which Yiolattl College policies. cocle ef eonEIHct, or local, state, or federal law. Though 
the use oftecheology resources is the fucus of this aoct11Hent, memhers of the Highlancl Community 

College Qommunity and others using Highland ComHmRity College's teclmelogy resources are 
advised that H-se may also he governed by other College policies including but not limited to those ifl 

the student hm½dbook. College catalog, and other policies go•,1erning aeaaemie, studem lite, or 

persomel matters at the College or agreements between the College and aftiliated organizatioRs. 
Highland Community College's technology and informatioe resources are Rot to be used for 

commercial pufl:)oses or 00n College related activities withottt writteH authori2ati0n frem the 
officer(s) of the CoUege that have eeee so designated (eoRtact the Di.rector. Information Technology 

SeFYices for further information). 

Highland Community College reseFYes tl:te right to eAfurce apf)lieable J:lenalties in aeeordaeee with 

College f)olieies. cede of eoeduct. or local, state. or feeeral law anelor immeaiately terminate access 
to College systems and network services to any user iA eases •.vhere teclmology resources have been 

used in a manaer that is disruptive or is otherwise eelieved to be in violation of "acceptable use" or 
other College policies er law. The College will act in accordance with the flFO¥isions of the Digital 
MilJCflflium Copy1ight Act in the event of notificatioR of alleged cop)'fight infringement by any user. 

Page 19 



ihe College retains control, custody aad supervision of all College pro,.rided OOfflf)Hter teehAol • 
l 0 enslif~ proper netv,cork pe~rmance and security, as well as appropriate use, aHthorized~ ogy. 

nfonnat_1on Te_c~ology 8ervtees staff may monitor and record \:Iser activity. No ttser shall ha"e 

:,_etahons of pm•aey m their use of computer technology, including e mail messag~s and st:red 

~ltho~~- Highlaad Comn=n:mity College_ takes measures to safeg1:tard integrity a-ed confideatialit • ·t 

~~ ~~ :' ay l~'l:l:~~n~e~s the safety or ~eC\:l?ty of iHformotion resrn:H'-Oes. High:laad Community Coll:~; 
. 1se aim~ 1a 1 tty for the unauthonzed mtereeption, l¾se, mis1:1se, damage or destruction of 

mform~ho~ reso1:1rces. ~o sradent, ~eulty fFteffiber, staff member, or aHthorized Hser shall seel( to 

h~ld Hi~hland Co~lffil¾mty _Colle~e hable ~r damage res1:1ltiRg from 1:1nauthoriz:ed iHterception use 
~tsuse, ~mage 01 destrachon of 1nfommt100 resot1rees. Each authorized ttser shall hold Hight' d ' 
- ommurnty Gollege h l d • .1 • • • aR : ~ -~rm ess an; muemnd)' 1t for any expense or Joss caused by his,lher O'Nn 

u~~ut~onz:~d ~~tercephoR, 1:1se, HHsuse. damage, or destruction of information resot1rces or by his 'he • 
vio at1on o t Hi Acceptable Use Guideline Eloc\:lment ' r 

1 

~:ousan:s o~current and ~rare si_udents, faculty, staff, alumni, and donors are utiliziRg social media 

:
0
:: ;~e as ~eeboolc. T·Httte_r. L1~lrndln, YouTube, lnstagrarn, Saapehat, Pinterest, and a whole 

messagmg apps, bloggJAg sites and eomrne0:t interfaces to stay personally and prefe • II 
coneected HCC b r .. th h • • ss1ona y : ~- ~ . e Jeve~ ,:ataymg ~ p_resenee m t-hese areas will allow the College to broadcast 
mfermahon and 1Rteraet i'rtth the pubhe m mays that ... ill further Hi hi· d' • • • • values,. w . w g an s rn1.ss1on, v1s1oa, aRd core 

Social med~a sites are powerful comm1:1nieatim1 tools that have a significant im aet on or a • • 
'.'.'.:d proless,eaal '"J'll!ilti0HS. lleea.,,e lffey 1,1., !He Ii ... l,el\vee• pers"""I ..,,::. ARB i•J.:=~-I 

,
1 

1~fy ~i~l:nd Comm1:1n1ty College has developed guidelines, located within this document, to hel 
cat~ . o:V ~st to ~Hhanc~ and protect persor:tal, professional, and iflstimtional reputatioas --,hen p 
part101patmg rn so01al media. ½ 

'Both m professioRal and institutional roles, efflf)loyees Reed to folio·" the same b h •• l t d ~ mh"I :t' . . . . l ." e a .. 1.0ra s an ftf s 
w 1 e paHmpatmg rn soe1a medrn as they would in real life situations The same Colle~ r • 
1".amily Ed , f J i;r h · . • epo 1C1es ~~a iona '1g ts and Pm·aey Act (FBRPA), Health IRsuranee Portability and • 
Accountab1hty "ct (HIP A A) d f d • .: ... : , •~1u • , co e o co~ uct. professw0:al e~1:pectations, aad g'tlidelines for 
t!'1lerachag u •~h st~dents, parems, alwl'lm, doaors, FRedia, and other constituents Bflply ooli0:e as ia 

tac~ to _face s1~at1_ons. E~ployees and students are persanally aeeountable for anything they p t t 
an:) s001al media sites and,,or apps. os o 

User end Staff Respensihilities: 

As a user or st~fi:~em~er of Highland Cmnffmnity College's teehaology resources you ha" • 
~hare~ res~ons1b1hty with th~ College's Information Teelmology Serviees staff to ~aintain ~ea 
1megnty of our systemt.. services, aRd information so that high q1:1ality ser'iees caR be pro•··d d 1 
@"er·one :v ·eT • · • ~ d e 0 • r . our respo0:s1 1 Jt1es tftclude: 

l. T; use the College's technolo_gy resources responsibly and appropriately, respeeting the ri hts 
o other 1:tsers lfl S:)'Stem, sePitees, ar:td iAformation aecess 24 ho1:1rs I3er flay 7 days ... ~ , . per wee E. 

Page 20 



2. Te respect all contractual and license agreements, pfi:r,,acy of infoFFRation, and the intellectual 
prope.rty of others. 

3. To comply with College, federal, smte, aad loeal regulations reganiing access aed use of 

information resom:ces (e.g., Co!Jege policies regarding the sensitive infurmation and 
dissemination of infonnation outside the campus, Federal Cop)'fight Act, The Family 

E:dueation R ➔ ghts and Privacy Act, Gramm Leach Bliley Act, Red Flag, HIPAA, eodes of 

professional resf')onsiaility. ete.). 

4. To exereise due diligem,e ifl proteetiHg any persoRally owRed tecl=!Hology devices you 

connect to the Highland Community Collt!lge wireless network from Yiruses. V.'OllHS, and 
security 1A1lnerahilities by regtdarly using a-nti Yirus software. 

5. To keep ym1r technology accoonts (computer, network, and applicatioa) secure. Report 

suspected una1:1thorized access to your supervisor or the Information Technology Services 

departmeflt. 

6. To not share your privileges with others. Yo1:1r access to teclmology resourees is not 
transferable to another member of the HighlaAd Community College community. to family 

members, or to an outside individual or orgaAi:z3atioR. 

7. To comt3ly 'Nith posted policies go:r,r;eming use of public cemputiflg facilities. 

8. To preseAt a Highlana Community CClllege digital presenee that reflects the highest staedards 

of quality and responsibility. As the O\'mer of digital conteAt you are respoasible to ensure 
that the ifRages, ·;,:orels, li0.ks, and retereeees from your digital presence are consistent with 
this and other College policies, cop)'fight laYlS, and applicaale local, state, federal la·Ns 
(mcluding, hut not limited to: AmericaAs with Disabilities Act and Web CoflteAt 

Accessibility GuideliAes 2.0). Published digital cement is Rot to be used for commercial 

p1:1rposes or fer activities not related to the f)WJIOSes of the College. without written 
authorii3ation from the College. 

9. To understand the implieatioAs of shariAg t3ers0Hal i-n:formatioa or data via the Internet, e 
mail, Instant Messagi0.g or other senrices that either are opee to access by others on aad off 

cal'Rpus, or that can ae forwarded to others. 

I 0. To keep all institutional data in safe keepiag. lAformation containing aAy persoRal data of 
smaents, staffer others sho1:1ld not lea:r,,e the iRstitution 1:10.secured. 

11. To ensure all it1furmatioR is stored to the Aetwork (H: and G:) and not to local computer hard 
drives (C:). 

Exon1ples of Violati011s of "Aeeeptahle Use" 

I. Atten=IJ)ting to obtain unauthorized access or cireum:r,,enting user authentication or security of 

any host. aetwork or account ("cracking"). This iAel1:1des accessing aata Hot intended for the 

Page 21 



~logging into a server or aecount the user is not expressly authori2:ed to acces, 
probmg the security of systems or networks. s, or 

2. Supplying ~r atten=tpting to SUflply false or misleasing infoffBation or isentification in oreer 
to access Htghlans Community College's tedmology resources. 

3. :;iag your passworss or attthorization coses with others (computing, e mail, af')plicatioas, 

4. Using technology resources for unauthori7ied or illegal uses. 

5. Lo~giag o~to another user's account; sending e mail, ete. from another user's aeeount or 
stwiee or from aa anonymous aecount. • 

6. Unauthorizes use of the College's registered Internet domain name(s). 

7 • C_haHging your Highl~s Co1nmHR:ity College issues machine name to a name that is 
different from that assigned by Informatioa Techaology Services. 

Un,u1#h9rizefl Aeeess to er Use ef&mees flHti Equipment 

8 Att • • • n e~nptlng to mterfere with service to an-y Hser, host, or aetv,•ork. This includes "d • I f 
seri'ICe" att I "fl d' " f ema o ,ac cs,oo mg o networks, deliberate attempts to overloas a service port , 
and attempts to "crash" a host. ' scans 

9. Use of any k~nd ofprogram/scriptkommand designed to interfere with a Hser's computer or 
network session. 

l 0. lfltentiooolly damaging or tampering with a computer or part of a computer system. 

1 I . Knowingly Sf')reading eompHter viruses. 

12. ~4odi~ing ~he soft:¥are or hareware eonfiguratioa of College teehnology resources 
mcluclmg s1smanth~g computers iri the lab for the purposes of eoftfleeting a notebo~k 
eomputer to the penf)herals. 

13. Excess_h•e use of tech~ology resourees for "frivolous" purposes, such as game pie •in 

st~~.mmg ~on ~clueatto~al _audio/·lide?, or dewnloatiing tiles. This causes eongesiio:~fthe 
Ret .. _ork_m ma~ otherwise mterfere ·.v1th the 'Nork of others, especially those wantiag to Hse 
plihhe aecess PCs or netv,•ork aed Internet resources. 

14 "H I. '' • .aecmg on computing aacl netv;orkieg systems of the College or using the College's 
fletv+'ork to "heel(' other networks. 

15. Settit'l:g up •Nireless access point" (m J\ P"I) ,i h 14. ~ . 

16. Em_ployees are ~ot to use technology serviees excessi¥ely for personal use while perfo • 
the!F regular assigned a1:1ties. nmng 

Page 22 



17. Unless resourees are 1:1sea to tHeet the College's pw:pose, to s1:1pport our eal!cational and 

community values, ana/or to s1:1pport 01:1r prograffis ana initiafr,ces, 1:1sers are prohibited freFH 

accessieg, submitting, p1:1blishing, disployiRg, or posting any defamatory, iAaccurate, abusi,.•e. 

obscene, profaHe, seKually otieBted or explicit, tlH:eatening, Fa€iaHy ofieasive, harassing, or 

illegal material. 

Uat1111htJrir;ed l 'se ttf&f.ftuwre, /JaUi & mfel'IHati<Jn 

18. Ittspecting, modifyieg, distributing, or eopying software or data without proper authorization, 

or attetHptiAg to do so. 

19. Violating sofhrare licensing pro>,':isioes. 

20. lastalling sofhvare on College machines without appropriate authori:z:atioH (from Information 

Technology SeF¥ices). 

21. Installing any diagnostic, aRalyzer, "sniffer," keystroketdaffi capt1:1re software or devices on 

College tecl=mology resources. 

22. Breaching confideetiality a~Teements for sofuvare and applicatioes; breaching confidentiality 

provisions for iRstiwtioRal or indi,,·idual information. 

Una11#it1ri•wtl u. .. e o-JEmfl.ill!nter,,et Akss-Rgi,,g 

23. Harassment or aMoyanee of others, whether th..-=e1:1gh langt:iege, frettuency or size of 

messages. 

24. SeRding oosolicited bulk mail messages ("junk fl'lail" or "spam") which, in the College's 

jHdgment, is ditn1.1ptive to system resol!rces or generates a significant number ofwser 

complaints. This includes b1:1lk mailing 0feom1Here:ial aa¥ertisiRg, political tracts, or other 

iBappropria-te use of systeffl e mail distributioH lists. Bulk ffiail shoula Rot he the venee for 

any all campus conversations. 

25. Forwm=ding or otherwise propagating chain email and p:Yfamia schemes, whether or not the 

recipients wish to recei¥e S\.¼€h mailiAgs. This includes chain e mail for charitable or socially 

responsible causes. 

26. Malieiolls e fl'lail, such as "mailbombing" or flooding a llser or site witJ:i •,er~' large or 

nHmerous items of e mail. 

27. Forging of email header em•elope information. 

28. Forging e tnail from another's account. 

Page 23 



l:nau#unized U!;e efH-ighlsnd C811m11,,nity College Digital Al-etlitl & Se1'Wl's 

29. PestiRg digital coRh-,nt that provides infonnatioR 0R aRd emmurages illegal acti:\<i:ty, er is 

harassing aRd defamiRg t0 ethers. 

30. Linking yeur digital presence to sites whose coRtent violates College policies, local. state, 

and/or federal laws aAd regulations. 

1. Runnieg a digital preseAee that suppert commercial aeti1t'ities or IllflRiRg ser.•er systems 

l:l:llder the College's regis~erea eomain nanie. HIGHLAND.EDU or ¥a1iati00 thereof, •.,rithOHt 

the College's authori2ation. 

Social Media Acceutable Use Guidelines (:lndAeeept-ahlc U!Jes (reaffirmed ) 

A. General Posting Recommendations: 

1. Be honest about your identity. If you desire to post about Highland in an unofficial 
capacity, please identify yourself as a Highland faculty or staff member. Never 

conceal your identity for the purpose of promoting Highland through social media. 
An excellent resource about transparency in social media sites is the Blog Council's 

"Disclosure Best Practices Toolkit" at http://blogcouncil.org1disclosure/ 

2. Be accurate in your posts. Make sure that you have all the facts before you post. It's 
better to verify information with a source first than to have to post a correction or 
retraction later. Cite and link to your sources whenever possible. If you make an 
error, correct it quickly and visibly. This will earn you respect in the online 

community. 

3. Be respectful to others. You are more likely to accomplish what you want if you are 
positive and respectful while discussing a bad experience or disagreeing with an idea 
or person. 

4. Be a valued member of the sites in which you are participating. If you join a social 
network like a Facebook group or comment on a blog, make sure you are contributing 

valuable input. Refrain from posting information about topics like Highland events 
unless you are sure it will be of interest to readers. Self-promoting behavior is viewed 
negatively and can lead to you being banned from certain sites or groups. 

5. Take care to think before you post. There's no such thing as a "private" social media 

site. Search engines can turn up posts long after the publication date. Comments can 
be forwarded or copied. Archival systems save information even if you delete a post. 

If you feel annoyed or passionate about a subject, it's advisable to hold off posting 
until you are calm and clear-headed. 

6. Maintain confidentiality at all times. Do not disclose confidential or proprietary 
information about Highland, its students, its alumni or your fellow employees. Use 

Page 24 



good ethical judgment and follow College policies and federal requirements, such as 
FERP A and HIP AA. As a guideline, don't post anything that you would not present 
at a conference. 

7. Respect College time and property. As stated in Section 5.23 of the College Policy 
Manual, computers and your work time are to be used for College-related business. It 
is appropriate to post at work if your comments are directly related to accomplishing 

college-related goals, such as seeking sources for information. You should maintain 
your personal sites on your own time using non-Highland devices. 

B. Official Highland Community College Social Media Accounts: 

To ensure that any and all interactions on behalf of Highland represent the College's best 
interests, the following guidelines are for those Highland employees authorized to 

participate and/or maintain official social media sites on behalf of the College. These 
guidelines are designed to be broad in nature to accommodate differences in online 
venues while maintaining a universal code of conduct. 

I. To be recognized by the College as an official HCC social media account, the account 
administrator(s) must seek approval from the Community Relations (CR) office. The 
CR office will review all social media inquiries. This office should also be used as a 
resource for the college community for any social media needs. The CR Office will 
ensure the pages are set up properly according to the social media site's policy. 

2. All Highland Community College social media accounts including, but not limited to, 
academic departments, student clubs and organizations, and public events, must have 

a HCC faculty or staff member as an administrator at all times. The CR office will 
have administrator privileges. 

3. Should an HCC employee account administrator leave the College or no longer wish 

to be an account administrator, the CR office should be notified before removing 
him/herself from that role. College employees identified as account administrators are 
held responsible for managing and monitoring content of their officially recognized 

accounts. 

4. Administrators are responsible to remove content that may violate the College's 

policies. If you have questions regarding the appropriateness of a post to a site that 
you administer, please contact the CR office. 

5. Paid advertising, including but not limited to boosting, sponsoring, or promoting a 
post, through social media must be coordinated through the Community Relations 

office. 

Page 25 



Content: 

1. Use good judgment about content and respect privacy laws. Do not include 
confidential information about the College, its staff, or its students. 

2. Do not post content that is threatening, obscene, a violation of intellectual property 
rights or privacy laws, or otherwise injurious or illegal. 

3. Be mindful of posting personal opinions on official College social media accounts. 
Do not use the HCC name to promote any product, cause, or political candidate. 

4. By posting content to any social media site, you agree that you own or otherwise 
control all of the rights to that content, that your use of the content is protected fair 
use, that you will not knowingly provide misleading or false information, and that 

you hold the College harmless for any claims resulting from the content. 

5. HCC has the right to remove any content for any reason, including but not limited to, 
content that it deems threatening, obscene, a violation of intellectual property rights 

or privacy laws, or otherwise injurious or illegal. 

6. When using or posting online material that includes direct or paraphrased quotes, 
thoughts, ideas, photos, or videos, from an outside source, always include citations. 
Provide a link to the original material if applicable. 

7. Do not use information and/or conduct activities that may violate local, state, or 
federal laws, and regulations. 

8. Crisis communications will be directed by the Public Information Officer and must be 
shared in a timely manner on all Highland Community College social media accounts 
including, but not limited to, academic departments, student clubs and organizations, 

and public events. 

Page 26 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-C-1 

JUNE 25, 2024 

IDGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

REVISED JOB DESCRIPTION 

DEAN. HUMANITIES, SOCIAL SCIENCES, AND FINE ARTS 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves the 
attached revised job description for the Dean, Humanities, Social Sciences, and Fine Arts. This 
is a full-time, administrative position and is included in the FY24 budget. 

BACKGROUND: With the incumbent in the position being promoted to the Vice President/ 
CAO, Academic Services, the job description was reviewed prior to posting the vacancy. The 
job description has been revised to update the principal duties and minimum qualifications. 

BOARD ACTION: ______ __________ ___ __ _ 

Page 27 



Highland Community College 
Position Description 

CORE V ALOES AND EMPLOYEE CHARACTERISTICS: Highland Community College 

has adopted a set of Core Values and Employee Characteristics that it believes each employee 
must model in order for the College to provide a supportive and productive working and learning 
environment. These Core Values are Integrity, Compassion and Respect. The Employee 

Characteristics are Commitment, Interpersonal Skills, Lifelong Leamer and Sound Judgment. 

TITLE: Dean, Humanities, Social Sciences, and Fine Arts* 

GENERAL STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES: To provide supervision and direction 

for the programs within the Humanities, Social Sciences, and Fine Arts areas of the College. 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES: (essential functions) 

• Trains, supervises and evaluates the work performance of assigned staff and faculty. 
Recommends employees for promotion, reassignment, discipline and termination. 

• Develops, supervises, coordinates and evaluates the instructional programs related to 
areas of assignment. 

• Directs the development of class schedules and teaching assignments and efficiently 
distributes teaching loads. 

• Directs and coordinates all aspects Humanities, Social Sciences, and Fine Arts education 
related funding options, grants, and state and federal requirements . 

.!.._Actively participates in and seeks opportunities to develop and promote new and existing 
programs and courses. 

• Develops partnerships with internal constituents and external organizations to better serve 

the students and local communicv. 

_•_Prepares and manages the annual budget and makes recommendations for the purchase of 
supplies, materials and equipment. 

• Participates in the development. implementation and evaluation of annual goals and 
objectives for the College. the division. other supervised areas and individuals. 

• Interprets administrative policies to faculty and staff and represents division faculty and 
staff members to the administration. 

• Provides supervision, leadership, and motivation to improve the quality of instruction, to 
implement the concept of the learning college, and to establish quality management 
principles and processes. 

• Participates in the development, implementation and evaluation of annual goals and 
objectives for the College, the division and individuals. 

• Oversees and facilitates the assessment of student learning within the division. 

• Participates in the College accreditation process and other projects as assigned. 

• Oversees the course development, implementation, and evaluation of transitional reading 
and English on campus and in regional high schools. 

• Develops personnel requirements and qualifications for assigned areas and, with the 
assistance of Human Resources, locates, interviews and recommends qualified personnel. 

• Assists in the preparation and maintenance of a variety of reports, plans, surveys and 
questionnaires as :aeededrequired. 

• Participates in collective bargaining #-as requested. 

• Directs a:ad eeefdi:aates Prie:ads efthe Pi:ae f.rts. 

• In accordance with the Risk Management Policy and Program: 

Adopted 11/19/1991 
Dean, Humanities, Social Sciences and Fine Arts 

Page 28 



Reviews student complaints. 

Oversees and monitor~ instructor and student travel. 

Performs safet\1 assessments of Humanities/Social Sciences/Fine Arts classrooms and 
equipment. 

Procures and oversees the use of program materials and supplies necessarv to 
maintain campus safe1v. 

Serves as a member of the College's Emergency ManagementOperations Team. 

Participates in emen.tenc, response trainine. and drills and assumes an emergenc\ 
response function as outlined in the College's Emernencv Operation Plan. 

Reviews student conduct and interventions. 

!...._Oversees and manages the Community Leadership Programs. 

• In consultation with the Vice President/CAO, Academic Services, may teach up to 6 

credit hours per fall and spring semesters within appropriate content area. 

• Represents the College at various meetings on and off campus. 

• Communicates effectively with staff and departments to support efficiency and the 
sharing of institutional knowledge. 

• Performs other duties as assigned. 

KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS REQUIRED: 

Knowledge of English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary. 

Knowledge of practices in the administration of instructional programs and related support 
activities. 

Knowledge of curriculum, programs and staff development. 
Knowledge of assessment practices of student learning. 

Knowledge of personnel management and supervisory principles and practices. 
Knowledge of utilizing data to make informed decisions. 
Knowledge of budget preparation and expenditure control. 

Knowledge of technology used in teaching and learning. 

Skill in operating computers and software applications. 

Skill in assessing community and instructional education needs and developing responsive 
programs. 

Skill in effective leadership, delegating tasks and authority, and training personnel. 
Skill in planning and developing instructional services. 

Skill in assessing and prioritizing multiple tasks, projects and demands. 

Skill in developing and implementing long and short-range goals and procedures for cost effective 
management of allocated resources. 
Skill in identifying problems, evaluating alternatives and implementing effective solutions. 

Skill in preparing reports, developing and monitoring budgets, and administering policies and 
procedures. 

Skill in establishing and maintaining effective relationships with a diverse population of co
workers and others. 

Skill in researching and writing grants and other operational reports. 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS/ACTIVITIES: The physical requirements of this position are 
sedentary in nature, exerting up to 10 lbs of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of 

force frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects, including the 
human body. Sedentary work involves sitting most of the time. 

Adopted 11/19/1991 
Dean, Humanities, Social Sciences and Fine Arts 

Page 29 



MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: Master's degree in humanities, social sciences, fine arts or a 
related field and five (5) years full-time teaching experience at the college level.! OR an 

eqeir;aleH-t eombiaatioa of edeeatioa and experieaee that pro•,zide the reqeired knowledge aad 
~ 

REQUJRED LICENSE/CERTIFICATION: None. 

SECURITY SENSITIVE POSITION: Requires a criminal background check. 

REPORTS TO: Vice President/Chief Academic Officer, Academic Services 

APPOINTED BY: Board of Trustees. 

EMPLOYEE CATEGORY: Administrative 

FLSA CLASSIFICATION: Exempt 

CLASS CODE: 6130 

JOB SERIES/FAMILY: Administrative Series/Academic Group 
LAST REVISED: 11/24/2929 06/25/24 *[Pending Board Approval] 

Adopted 11/19/1991 
Dean, Humanities, Social Sciences and Fine Arts 

Page 30 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-C-2 

JUNE 25, 2024 

IDGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

REVISED JOB DESCRIPTION 

FINANCIAL AID SPECIALIST II 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves the 
attached revised job description for Financial Aid Specialist IL This will become a full-time, 
non-exempt professional position and is included in the FY24 budget. 

BACKGROUND: The College is subject to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) administered 
by the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL). This Act establishes, among other things, each 
position's eligibility for the payment of overtime. The DOL published its final rule revising the 
overtime exemption regulations of the FLSA. The final overtime rule includes an exempt 
employee salary threshold of $43,888 ($844 per week) effective July 1, 2024, and a subsequent 
increase to $58,656 ($1,128 per week) effective January 1, 2025. The salary threshold will be 
updated every three years to keep up with inflation. As a result of the initial increase to the 
exempt salary threshold, this position is changing from an exempt professional position to a non
exempt professional position. 

BOARD ACTION: ______________________ _ 

Page 31 



Highland Comm unity College 
Position Description 

CORE VALUES AND EMPLOYEE CHARACTERISTICS: Highland Community College 
has adopted a set of Core Values and Employee Characteristics that it believes each employee must 

model in order for the College to provide a supportive and productive working and learning 
environment. These Core Values are Integrity, Compassion and Respect. The Employee 

Characteristics are Commitment, Interpersonal Skills, Lifelong Leamer and Sound Judgment. 

TITLE: Financial Aid Specialist II* 

GENERAL STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES: Provides direction and information to 

potential and current student loan borrowers as well as other financial aid recipients; processes 
loans, MAP grants and college work study awards. 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES: (essential functions) 

• Counsels students on loan eligibility and process. 

• Calculates, awards and reconciles student loans, MAP grants and College Work Study 
funds to student applicants based on Federal, state and institutional regulations. 

• Develops, implements and evaluates department processes and procedures for processing 
loan awards. Tests and identifies issues in SCT Banner related to loan processing. 

• Processes electronic transmissions with Department of Education and state agencies. 

• Identifies and resolves discrepancies regarding federal and state financial aid awards. 

• Assists applicants in completing Free Application for Federal Student Aid, private 

foundation scholarship applications, federal and state veteran benefit applications and 
required federal verification materials and answers questions regarding federal, state and 
private financial aid. 

• Provides exit counseling to loan students based on enrollment status, tracks and contacts 
students who are past due on starting loan repayment, reviews Department of Education 

default rate calculation report to ensure accuracy and resolves any errors. 

• Updates and revises department policy and procedure manual. 

• Performs other duties as assigned. 

KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS REQUIRED: 

Knowledge of the English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary. 
Knowledge of federal and state financial aid requirements. 

Knowledge of college's policies and procedures pertaining to financial aid. 
Knowledge, understanding and compliance with Federal and state privacy laws related to 

students. 
Knowledge of computer operations and software applications. 
Knowledge of utilizing data to make informed decisions. 

Knowledge of customer service techniques. 

Skill in operating computers and software applications. 

Skill in performing general office duties. 
Skill in responding professionally, effectively and efficiently to customer service requests. 
Skill in disseminating information, responding to inquiries and retrieving information. 

Skill in effectively communicating using tact and diplomacy. 
Skill in analyzing information and situations and providing appropriate recommendations. 

Adopted 4/19/2005 
Financial Aid Specialist II 

Page 32 



Skill in establishing and maintaining effective relationships with co-workers and others. 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS/ACTMTIES: The physical requirements of this position are 
sedentary in nature, exerting up to 10 lbs of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of 

force frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects, including the 

human body. Sedentary work involves sitting most of the time. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: Associate's degree in accounting, business or a related field, 
with Bachelor's degree preferred and two (2) years financial aid or loan processing work 

experience OR an equivalent combination of education and experience that provide the required 
knowledge and skills. 

REQUIRED LICENSE/CERTIFICATION: None. 

REPORTS TO: Director, Financial Aid 

APPOINTED BY: President 

EMPLOYEE CATEGORY: Professional 

FLSA CLASSIFICATION: Non-Exempt 
CLASS CODE: 3109 
JOB SERIES/FAMILY: Financial and Accounting Series/Financial Aid Group 
LAST REVISED: 02/19/1906/25/24 *[Pending Board Approval] 

Adopted 4/19/2005 
Financial Aid Specialist II 

Page 33 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-C-3 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

COMPENSATION ADJUSTMENT 

VICE PRESIDENT/CSSO, STUDENT DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves a 
compensation adjustment for Liz Gerber, Vice President/CSSO of Student Development and 
Support Services, in the amount of $6,500 effective July 1, 2024. 

BACKGROUND: Ms. Gerber was provided a stipend for taking on responsibilities related to 

compliance with the Office for Civil Rights. In addition, Ms. Gerber has taken on additional 

accountability and oversight in relation to grants that have been awarded in the Student Services 
area. After review, it has been determined that the added responsibilities will be an ongoing 

expectation of the position. Subsequently, it is recommended that the stipend, as outlined, be 
added to the employee's base salary. Necessary revisions to the job description resulting from 
the additional duties will be included for approval at the regular July Board meeting. 

BOARD ACTION: 

Page 34 

------ ----------------- ---



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-C-4 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

COMPENSATION ADJUSTMENT 

HEAD COACH/COORDINATOR. ATHLETIC OPERATIONS 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves a 
compensation adjustment for Luke Norman, Head Coach/Coordinator, Athletic Operations, in 
the amount of $2,158 effective February 28, 2024, as a result of the change in his job title and 
duties from Head Coach/Coordinator, Sports Information and Intramurals to Head Coach/ 
Coordinator, Athletic Operations, which was approved by trustees at their February 27, 2024, 

regular meeting. 

BACKGROUND: Due to the realignment of position responsibilities, the role of Head 
Coach/Coordinator, Sports Information and Intramurals was modified to Head Coach/ 

Coordinator, Athletic Operations. The position moved to a higher range on the salary table. 

After review, it has been determined that Mr. Norman's salary should be adjusted based on the 

new range placement for the position. 

BOARD ACTION: --------------------------

Page 35 



AGENDA ITEM #XIII-C-5 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

COMPENSATION ADJUSTMENT 

TECHNICAL COORDINATOR, FINE ARTS/fHEATRE TECHNICAL DIRECTOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves a 
compensation adjustment for Alex Jansen, Technical Coordinator, Fine Arts/Theatre Technical 
Director, in the amount of $3,500 effective July 1, 2024. 

Page 36 

BACKGROUND: Mr. Jansen was provided a stipend for taking on responsibilities related to 
project management and safety planning. After review, it has been determined that the added 
responsibilities will be an ongoing expectation of the position. Subsequently, it is recommended 
that the stipend, as outlined, be added to the employee's base salary. Necessary revisions to the 
job description resulting from the additional duties will be included for approval at the regular 
July Board meeting. 

BOARD ACTION: ______________________ _ 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-C-6 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

COMPENSATION ADJUSTMENT 

DIRECTOR, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves a 
compensation adjustment for Pete Fink, Director, Information Technology Services, in the 
amount of $1,754 effective July 1, 2024. 

BACKGROUND: Mr. Fink was provided a stipend for taking on the additional duties of 
setting up and monitoring Zoom for Board meetings and retreats during COVID. Incorporating 
Zoom into Board meetings and retreats has become an ongoing practice, and it has been 
determined that the added responsibilities will be a continued expectation of the position. 

Subsequently, it is recommended that the stipend, as outlined, be added to the employee's base 
salary. 

BOARD ACTION: --------------------------

Page 37 



AGENDA ITEM #XIII-D-1 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS EXTENSION - STEPHENSON COUNTY 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: It is recommended that the Highland 
Community College Board enters into a lease agreement with the University of Illinois 
Extension for occupancy by the University of Illinois Extension - Stephenson County of 
approximately 3,007 square feet of space in the Community Services Center, at the following 
annual rates: 

$44,312.52 for the period July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 (FY25) 
$45,641.88 for the period of July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 (FY26) 
$47,011.20 for the period of July 1, 2026 through June 30, 2027 (FY27) 

The Board further authorizes the College President and Board Secretary to execute the 
agreement by appropriate signatures. 

BACKGROUND: The recommendation provides for the renewal of the lease agreement with 
the University of Illinois Extension for a three-year period. The lease includes custodial 
services, utilities, and desirable covenants essential to provide understanding to both parties. The 
use of additional College facilities outside the leased premises in the Community Services Center 
is governed by policies, procedures and regulations established by Highland Community 
College. The new annual rates represent a 3% annual increase. 

BOARD ACTION: ______________________ _ 

Page 38 



UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS SYSTEM 
Urbana-Champaign• Chicago • Springfield 

LEASE AGREEMENT/ INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS EXTENSION 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LEASE TERMS 

This Summary Statement of Lease Terms (the "Summary") is attached to and made a part of the Lease 

Agreement (the "Lease") dated as of the Effective Date referenced below by and between the Landlord 

and Tenant referenced below. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Summary and the terms 

of the Lease, the terms of the lease shall control. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

Effective Date of Lease: As of the date of the last signature 

Landlord: Highland Community College 

landlord's Address: 2998 W. Pearl City Rd. 

Freeport, IL 61032 

Landlord's FEIN and Legal Entity FEIN: 36-2616076 

Certification: 
Individual I Real Estate Agent 

□ Sole Proprietorship 181 Government Entity 

Partnership u Tax Exempt Org 

Corporation [IRC SOl(a) only] 

Not-for-Profit Corp I I Trust or Estate 

□ Medical/Health Care □ Limited Liability Company 

Managing Agent/Contact Person: Name: Jill Janssen 
Phone: 815-599-3412 
Email: 

jill.janssen@highland.edu 

Tenant: The Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois, a 

body corporate and politic of the State of Illinois 

Unit/Department: University of Illinois Extension 

Contact Person: Christine Janak 

Building: Community Services Building, 2998 W. Pearl City Rd., 

Freeport, IL 61032, which are the buildings in which the 

Premises are located. 

Premises: A portion of 2998 W. Pearl City Rd., Freeport, IL 

61032 containing 3,007 rentable square feet per plan 

as noted in Exhibit "A" 

Exclusive parking areas: Non-exclusive parking 

STANDARD FORM-UI EXTENSION APPROVED BY REAL ESTATE SERVICES & LEGAL COUNSEL 
(BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 39 



11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

11 

Initial Term: 1 Year 

Commencement Date: 07/01/2024 

Termination Date: 06/30/2025 

Renewal Option(s): Automatic Renewal (2) per Article 4 

Base Rent Schedule: $44,312.52 payable in monthly installments of 

$3,692.71 

Renewal Terms Rent Schedule Renewal Term 1: July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026; 

$45,641.88 payable in monthly installments of 

$3,803.49 

Renewal Term 2: July 1, 2026 - June 30, 2027; 

$47,011.20 payable in monthly installments of 

$3,917.60 

Rent Abatement: None 

Permitted Use: Office and programming space for Illinois Extension 

Security Deposit: None 

Broker: None 

Notice Addresses: Highland Community College 

To Landlord 2998 W. Pearl City Rd. 

Freeport, IL 61032 

To Tenant University of Illinois 

Real Estate Services 

Attention: Director 

506 S. Wright Street, Suite 208 

Urbana, IL 61822 

And 

Christine Janak 

Office of Extension and Outreach 

111 Mumford Hall, MC-710 

1301 W. Gregory Dr. 

Urbana, IL 61801 

With a copy to Tenant at Premises. 

STANDARD FORM-UI EXTENSION APPROVED BY REAL ESTATE SERVICES & LEGAL COUNSEL 
(BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 40 



LEASE AGREEMENT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

DEFINITIONS ................................... , ..... , .................................... 11., ••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 11 .............. 1 

LIST OF EXHIBITS .................... , ...................................... , ............................. " ................................. 1 

PREMISES ........................................................................................................ ., ........................ 2 

TERM AND RENEWAL OPTIONS .............................................................................................. 2 

RENTAL PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................ 2 

USE OF PREMISES ................................................................................................................... 2 

NOTICES AND PAVMENTS ............................................ , ......... , .... , ................................................ 3 

TAXES, SERVICES AND UTILITIES ............................................................................................. 3 

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE ................................................................................................. 3 

POSSESSION AND CONDITION OF PREMISES ........................................................................... 4 

ALTERATIONS AND MECHANICS' LIENS ................................................................................... 4 

LIABILITY ....................... , ................................... , ................................... ,, ............................................... 11 ............... 4 

DAMAGE OR THEFT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY ......................................................................... 4 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................. 4 

WAIVER OF SUBROGATION .................................................................................................... 5 

FIRE OR OTHER CASUALTY ....... , ...... ... , ................... , .................................................. 11 ... ,,, ...................... S 

CONDEMNATION ................................................................................................................... 6 

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING ............................................................................................. 6 

DEFAULT BY TENANT .............................................................................................................. 6 

DEFAULT BY LANDLORD ......................................................................................................... 6 

ENTRY BY LANDLORD AND QUIET ENJOYMENT ....................................................................... 6 

SUBORDINATION ................................................................................................................... 7 

ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE ........................................................................................................... 7 

HOLDOVER .......................... , .. , .............. ,., ....................... , ................................................ , .............. 7 

SURRENDER OF POSSESSION .................................................................................................. 7 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS, LAWS AND STATE CERTIFICATIONS ................................................. 8 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .................................................... , ... , ........ 1:, ••••• ,, •• ,, .......................... 8 

STANDARD FORM-UI EXTENSION APPROVED BY REAL ESTATE SERVICES & LEGAL COUNSEL 
(BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 41 



LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Lease Agreement (the "Lease"), including the Summary Statement (the "Summary") which is 

attached hereto and is incorporated herein, is made as of the Effective Date and is entered into by and 

between Landlord and Tenant. 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS. 

Managing Agent: See Summary. If Landlord elects to change the Managing Agent, Landlord will notify 

Tenant in writing of such change. 

Initial Term: See Summary. 

Automatic Renewal: See Summary 

Premises: See Summary. 

Commencement Date: See Summary. 

Termination Date: See Summary. 

Base Rent Schedule: See Summary. 

Tenant: The Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois, a body corporate and politic of the State of 

Illinois. 

2. EXHIBITS. The exhibits listed in this paragraph are attached to this Lease and are hereby incorporated 

in and made a part of this Lease. 

Exhibit A - Premises Plan 

Exhibit B - Lease Addendum (if applicable) 

Exhibit C - Summary of Services and Utilities 

Exhibit D - Summary of Repairs and Maintenance Responsibilities 

Exhibit E-1-Work Letter (if applicable) 

Exhibit E-2 - Statement of Compliance (if applicable) 

Exhibit F - Real Estate Lease Form Disclosure Statement 

In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Lease and the Exhibits to this Lease, the terms of 

the Lease shall control, except that Exhibit B (if applicable) shall control over the terms of the Lease. 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 42 



2 

3. PREMISES. 

A. Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, subject to the terms, 

covenants and conditions herein set forth, the Premises set forth in the Summary and being 

shown on the floor plan attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

B. Tenant will also have the non-exclusive right to use, in common with other tenants in the Building, 

any and all of the following areas which may be appurtenant to the Premises: common entrances, 

lobbies, elevators, stairways and access ways, loading and unloading areas, parking areas, ramps, 

drives, platforms, public restrooms, and common walkways and sidewalks necessary for access to 

the Premises. Parking must accommodate the Environmental Barrier Act, P.A. 84-948 and ADA 

accessibility standards. Exclusive parking areas, if any, are defined in the Summary. 

4. TERM AND RENEWAL OPTIONS. This Lease shall be for an Initial Term commencing on the 

Commencement Date and ending on the Termination Date. This Lease shall be automatically renewed 

for two (2) successive one (1) year terms thereafter (each a renewa l term} until and unless either party 

provides 90 days prior written notice to cancel at the end of the initial term or renewal terms. Such 

notice shall be provided to the parties in Section 19 of the Summary. 

5. RENTAL PAYMENTS. The Tenant shall pay "Base Rent" to the Landlord or Managing Agent in the 

amount and at the address set forth in the Summary or to such other person or at such other place as 

Landlord may direct in writing. The Base Rent shall be paid by the Tenant in equal monthly 

installments as set forth in the Summary and shall be paid in advance, on or before the first day of 

each month of the Initial Term and any Renewal Term(s). If the Lease Commencement Date is other 

than the first day of a calendar month, then the Base Rent for that month will be prorated on a daily 

basis, based on the actual number of days in that month and shali be inclusive of Landlord's 

responsibilities as set forth herein and in the Summary, Exhibit C and Exhibit D. Notwithstanding any 

of the foregoing, in no event shall Tenant be required to make any payment of Base Rent prior to its 

occupancy of the Premises. Rent payments may be other than monthly if noted in Summary. 

6. USE OF PREMISES. Tenant shall use the Premises for the purposes specified in the Summary. Tenant 

may alter said use to any lawful purpose, upon the written consent of Landlord, which consent will 

not be unreasonably withheld. 

Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant that all Leasehold Improvements, the current and 

proposed uses, and the operation of the Building and Premises are, and will remain, in full compliance 

with applicable building and seismic codes, fire, health and safety codes, environmental, zoning and 

land use laws, and other applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations and ordinances. 

Tenant will have no liability or responsibility for toxic or hazardous materials or substances in 

existence on the Premises prior to Tenant's occupancy of the demised Premises or which result from 

Landlord's acts or omissions or which occur on any portion of Landlord's property not occupied by 

Tenant, unless caused by Tenant, its agents, or employees. Landlord specifically warrants that at the 

time of execution of this Lease that all known areas where hazardous or toxic materials or substances 

(including, but not limited to, asbestos or PCBs) have been used, stored, or deposited on the 

Landlord's property have been properly remediated or are being managed in compliance with 

ill Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 43 



3 

applicable state and federal requirements. Tenant will comply with all applicable laws concerning the 

handling or discharge of hazardous materials in connection with its use of Premises. 

7. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS. All notices under this Lease shall be in writing and shall be sent to the 

addresses set forth in the Summary either personally with an executed acknowledgment of receipt or 

deposited in the United States mail, certified return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Any notice 

will be deemed delivered no later than five (S) business days after notice is mailed or, if personally 

delivered, when acknowledgment of receipt is signed. Either party may change its own mailing 

address by written notice to the other party. Payments shall be made as indicated in the Summary. 

8. TAXES, SERVICES AND UTILITIES. Landlord hereby affirms and both the parties mutually agree that 

property taxes and special assessments on the Premises shall be paid in full by Landlord. 

Services and utilities to the Premises shall be furnished and the responsibility for said services and 

utilities shall be as outlined in Exhibit C, "Summary of Services and Utilities." In the event of the failure 

by Landlord to furnish, in a manner reasonably satisfactory to Tenant, any of the services and utilities 

to the Premises, Tenant may notify Landlord of such failure, and if not remedied by Landlord within 

five (5} business days after the receipt of written notice, then Tenant may deduct the amount thereof, 

including Tenant's service costs, from Base Rent or other remuneration due Landlord hereunder, and 

furthermore, Tenant may take any other remedy permitted by law. 

9. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. Landlord shall be responsible, at its sole cost, for repairs, alterations 

or necessary replacements to structural building components such as roof, foundations, structural 

columns and beams, exterior walls and windows, elevators including state licensing and fees, and 

underground utility and sewer pipes outside the exterior walls of the building. Landlord also is 

responsible, at its sole cost, for maintaining the electrical, plumbing, and HVAC (heating, ventilation, 

air conditioning) systems so that all parts of each of these systems are operational, subject to 

reasonable time to make repairs. 

Tenant shall report to Landlord any condition known to it which Landlord is required to repair or 

replace. Landlord may enter the Premises at reasonable hours upon 24-hour notice to Tenant to make 

repairs required of Landlord under terms hereof. 

Further, Landlord shall maintain the parking area and common facilities in good order, condition and 

repair, including adequate lighting, painting, snow removal, drainage, supervision and the like, and all 

costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, real estate taxes, 

special assessments, repairs, janitorial expenses for all common facilities, garbage storage and 

garbage removal expenses, shall be paid by Landlord. 

The respective repair and maintenance responsibilities of Landlord and Tenant for the Premises are 

set forth in Exhibit D, "Summary of Repair and Maintenance Responsibilities." Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, Tenant will pay to Landlord the reasonable cost of any repairs or maintenance required as 

a direct result of the negligent acts or omissions of Tenant, its agents, or employees. If Landlord fails 

to maintain the Premises or to make the repairs required herein within a reasonable time after written 

notice from Tenant, Tenant may perform such maintenance or make such repairs at its expense and 

deduct the reasonable cost thereof from the Base Rent or other remuneration due hereunder. 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 44 



4 

10. POSSESSION AND CONDITION OF PREMISES. Unless otherwise provided in Exhibit E-1, the Tenant's 

taking possession of the Premises or any portion thereof shall be deemed to be conclusive evidence 

that the Premises, or such portion thereof, are in good and satisfactory condition. No promise of the 

Landlord to alter, remodel, decorate, clean or improve the Premises or the Building and no 

representation respecting the condition of the Premises or the Building have been made by the 

Landlord to the Tenant, except that Landlord agrees to improve the Premises {and Landlord and 

Tenant agree to pay for such improvement{s)) as set forth in the Work Letter attached hereto as 

Exhibit E-1. Landlord shall deliver possession of the Premises to Tenant upon substantial completion 

of the "Work" to be performed by Landlord under Exhibit E-1. 

11. ALTERATIONS AND MECHANICS' LIENS. No wall, structural, mechanical or electrical alterations or 

improvements will be made to Premises by Tenant or at Tenant's request without the prior written 

consent of Landlord, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. 

Tenant may remove any fixtures, machinery and equipment installed in the Premises by Tenant upon 

termination of this lease, if Tenant is not then in default under this Lease and if Tenant repairs any 

damage to the Premises caused by such removal. Upon termination of this Lease, Tenant will return 

the Premises in the same condition as when delivered to Tenant, reasonable wear and tear, damage 

by casualty, and alterations approved by Landlord excepted. 

The parties shall keep the Premises free from any liens arising out of any work performed by, materials 

furnished to, or obligations incurred by the parties. 

12. LIABILITY. It is understood and agreed that neither party to this Lease shall be liable for any negligence 

or wrongful act either of omission or commission chargeable to the other unless such liability is 

imposed by law and that this Lease shall not be construed as seeking either to enlarge or diminish any 

obligation or duty owed by one party to the other or to third parties. 

13. DAMAGE OR THEFT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY. Tenant agrees that all personal property brought into 

the Premises shall be at the risk of the Tenant only and that the Landlord shall not be liable for theft 

thereof or any damages thereto occasioned from any act of any person, except as may be caused by 

negligence or willful misconduct of the Landlord. 

14. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

A. Tenant shall, at its soie cost and expense, at all times during the Lease Term, maintain in full force 

a policy or policies of insurance, written by one or more responsible insurance carriers, which will 

insure Landlord against liability for bodily injury and/or property damage occurring in or about 

the Premises. The liability under such insurance will not be less than One Million Dollars 

{$1,000,000) for any one occurrence. Tenant will annually provide Landlord, on the anniversary 

date of Tenant's liability insurance renewal, with a certificate of insurance naming the Landlord 

as additional insured as it respects liability the Landlord incurs as a result of the operations of the 

Tenant on the Premises. Tenant agrees to provide (30) days advance public written notice of any 

reductions of coverage or cancellations. 

B. The Tenant, as a State Institution, provides any necessary Workers' Compensation benefits 

required by State Statute. 

ill Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 45 



5 

C. Landlord shall, at its sole cost and expense, at all times during the Lease Term, maintain in full 

force a policy or policies of insurance, written by one or more responsible insurance carriers, 

which will insure Tenant against liability for bodily injury to and/or property damage occurring in 

or about the common facilities. The liability under such insurance will not be less than One Million 

Dollars ($1,000,000) for any one occurrence. 

D. Further, Landlord shall, at its own expense, at all times during the Lease Term, maintain in full 

force property insurance on the Premises for the full insurable value ofthe building(s) and its/their 

permanent improvements. Such insurance will protect against fire and other perils commonly 

associated with a "broad-form" perils insurance policy. Landlord will provide Tenant a certificate 

of insurance evidencing said coverage at Lease commencement. Landlord agrees to provide thirty 

(30) days advance written notice to Tenant of any modifications, changes or cancellations. 

15. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Landlord and Tenant each hereby waive any right of recovery against 

the other due to loss of or damage to the property of either Landlord or Tenant when such loss of or 

damage to property arises out of the acts of God or any of the property perils, such as fire and other 

perils commonly associated with a broad-form insurance policy, whether or not such perils have been 

insured, self-insured or non-insured. 

16. FIRE OR OTHER CASUALTY. 

A. If the Premises are totally destroyed by fire or other casualty, either Landlord or Tenant may 

terminate this Lease immediately by giving notice to the other party. In case of destruction during 

the Lease Term, Base Rent and other remuneration due to Landlord will abate during the period 

and to the extent that the Premises are rendered unusable for Tenant's purposes. 

8. If the Premises are partially destroyed, Landlord must within thirty (30) days of the destruction 

notify Tenant, in writing, of the time period in which restoration will be complete. If such casualty 

will render ten percent (10%) or less of the floor space of the Premises unusable for the purposes 

intended, Landlord will effect restoration ofthe Premises as quickly as is reasonably possible, but 

in any event within thirty (30} days after such destruction. Landlord may terminate this Lease by 

written notice within thirty (30) days of the loss if such loss is not covered by any insurance 

described in the provisions of this Lease. Base Rent and other remuneration due to Landlord will 

abate during the period and to the extent that the Premises are rendered unusable for Tenant's 

purposes. 

C. Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving written notice within thirty (30) days after any of the 

following: if it is determined Landlord cannot restore Premises to substantially the same 

condition as before destruction; if Tenant is notified that such restoration period will be more 

than one hundred twenty (120) days; if restoration extends beyond the time period for 

completion as contained in the notification to Tenant unless such extension is due to a reasonable 

delay. Base Rent and other remuneration will abate during the period and to the extent that the 

Premises are rendered unusable for Tenant's purposes. 

D. Reasonable delay shall be defined as follows: (a) acts of Tenant, its agents, or employees; acts of 

God which Landlord could not reasonably have foreseen or guarded against; (b) any strikes, 

boycotts or like obstructive actions by employees or labor organizations and which are beyond 

U1 Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 46 



6 

the control of Landlord and which cannot be reasonably overcome; or (c) restrictive regulations 

by the Federal Government which are enforced in connection with a national emergency. 

17. CONDEMNATION. If the whole of the Premises or a portion thereof is condemned by any legally 

constituted authority, making the Premises unusable for the purposes herein, the Term hereby 

granted will cease from the date when possession thereof is taken by public authorities, and rental 

shall be accounted for as between Landlord and Tenant as of said date and Tenant shall have no 

further obligation to pay Base Rent for any period of time beyond said date. Such termination, 

however, shall be without prejudice to the rights of either Landlord or Tenant to recover 

compensation and damage caused by condemnation from the condemner. It is further understood 

and agreed that neither the Tenant nor Landlord shall have any rights in any separate award made to 

the other by any condemnation authority notwithstanding the termination of the Lease as herein 

provided. However, any award to the Tenant shall not reduce the award to the Landlord. 

18. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING. Tenant will not assign or sublet all or any portion of the Premises 

without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. 

19. DEFAULT BY TENANT. If the Tenant defaults in the payment of Base Rent, and the Tenant does not 

cure the default, within thirty (30) days after demand for payment of such rent, or if the Tenant 

defaults in the prompt and full performance of any other provision of this Lease, and the Tenant does 

not cure the default within thirty (30) days after written demand by the Landlord that the default be 

cured unless the default involves a hazardous condition, which shall be cured forthwith upon the 

Landlord's demand, Landlord may terminate this Lease by giving notice to Tenant, in which event the 

Term of this Lease shall end, and all such right, title and interest of the Tenant hereunder shall expire 

on the date stated in the notice. 

If this lease terminates pursuant to a default by Tenant hereunder, landlord may immediately enter 

upon and repossess the Premises and seek any remedies allowable under the laws of the State of 

Illinois, including specific performance. 

20. DEFAULT BY LANDLORD. landlord will be in default if landlord fails to perform its obligations under 

this lease within thirty (30) days after written notice by Tenant to landlord specifying wherein 

Landlord has failed to perform such obligations. If the nature of landlord's obligation is such that 

more than thirty (30} days are required for performance, then landlord will not be in default if 

Landlord commences performance within such thirty (30) day period and thereafter diligently 

prosecutes the same to completion. 

If Landlord fails to cure a default within the time period set forth, Tenant shall have the option to 

terminate this Lease, in addition to any other remedies allowable under the laws of the State of 

Illinois, including spedfic performance and may receive an award for all reasonable damages. If 

Landlord's default hereunder prevents Tenant's use of the Premises, there will be a proportional 

abatement of rental payments for the period of such non-use, 

21. ENTRY BV LANDLORD AND QUIET ENJOYMENT. 

A. Tenant shall allow Landlord access to the Premises at reasonable times during normal working 

hours for the purpose of examining or inspecting the same upon prior notice to Tenant. In the 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 47 



7 

event of an emergency, as reasonably determined by Landlord, Landlord shall have an absolute 

right of access to the Premises. 

B. If Tenant performs the terms of this Lease, when required under this Lease, Landlord will warrant 

and defend Tenant in the quiet and peaceful enjoyment and possession of the Premises during 

the term hereof and any extension without interruption by Landlord or any person claiming under 

Landlord. 

22. SUBORDINATION. This is an unsubordinated Lease. Landlord is not obligated to subordinate its rights 

and interests in the Premises to any loan, mortgage or money encumbrance that Tenant shall place 

against Tenant's interest in this Lease or in its interest in the Leasehold Improvements. Tenant 

acknowledges and agrees that Landlord's interest in the Premises shall not be subordinated to the 

Lease. 

Upon prior written request of Landlord, Tenant sha II execute any instrument permitting mortgages or 

deeds of trust to be placed against Landlord's interest in and to the Premises and the Building or any 

part thereof as security for any indebtedness and shall subordinate the Lease to such mortgages or 

trust deeds, if required to do so by the secured party. 

23. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE. Upon receipt of a written request from Landlord, Tenant shall, from time to 

time upon not less than twenty-one (21) days from the receipt of a written request, acknowledge and 

deliver a statement in writing to Landlord certifying (a) that this Lease is unmodified and in full force 

and effect or, that if there have been modifications, that the Lease as modified is in full force and 

effect; (b) the dates to which Base Rent and other charges have been paid; (c) acknowledging that 

there are not to its knowledge, any uncured defaults on the part of the other hereunder, or specifying 

such defaults if any are claimed. Any such statement may be relied upon by a prospective purchaser 

or encumbrancer of all or any portion of an estate in which the Premises is located. 

Failure by Tenant to deliver the certificate within such time shall be conclusive (i) that this Lease is in 

full force and effect and has not been modified except as may be represented by Landlord; (ii) that 

there are no uncured defaults in performance by Landlord; and (iii) that all Base Rent has been paid. 

24. HOLDOVER. In the event Tenant remains in possession of Premises after the expiration of the Initial 

Term, or any renewal thereof, this Lease shall be automatically extended on a month-to-month basis, 

for a period not to exceed six (6) months, terminable by either party upon giving thirty {30) days 

written notification, and otherwise on terms and conditions equivalent to the final month of the Lease 

Term. 

25. SURRENDER OF POSSESSION. At the expiration or other termination of this Lease, Tenant shall 

peaceably and quietly quit and surrender to Landlord possession of the Premises (including all 

Leasehold Improvements) herein in good order and condition subject to the other provisions of this 

Lease. Tenant's removable paneling and wall fixtures and furniture, trade fixtures, signs, goods and 

materials used in Tenant's business shall at all times remain personal property and may be removed 

from time to time by Tenant; provided, however, that Tenant shall be responsible for the cost of repair 

of any physical injury to the Premises caused by the removal of any such property, but not for any 

diminution in value of the Premises caused by the absence of the property removed or by any 

necessity for replacing such property. 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 48 



8 

26. LAWS AND CERTIFICATIONS. 

A. Equal Employment/Non-discrimination. The policy of Tenant and Landlord is to comply with all 

mandatory Federal and State nondiscrimination, equal opportunity and affirmative action laws, 

orders, and regulations. The Tenant and Landlord will not engage in discrimination or harassment 

against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, age, marital 

status, handicap, unfavorable discharge from the military, or status as a disabled veteran or a 

veteran from the Viet Nam era. This nondiscrimination policy applies to admissions, employment, 

access to and treatment in the Tenant and Landlord programs and activities. 

B. Environmental Barriers Act/Handicapped Accessibility. Landlord complies with applicable 

provisions of the Environmental Barriers Act {4011LCS 25/1 et seq.) and the Illinois Accessibility 

Code 71111. Adm. Code 400. 

C. State Laws. This Lease is governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Illinois. 

27. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. Waiver. The waiver by Landlord or Tenant of any term, covenant or condition herein contained 

shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other term, covenant or condition nor shall either 

party's consent to any breach of any term, covenant or condition be deemed to constitute or 

imply its consent to any subsequent breach of the same or other term, covenant or condition 

herein contained. 

B. Entire Agreement. This Lease, including any attachments made a part hereof, contains the entire 

agreement of the parties and no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, oral or 

otherwise, between the parties not embodied herein shall be of any force or effect. 

C. No Amendments. No amendment of this Lease will be valid unless made in writing and signed by 

the parties hereto, and no prior, contemporaneous, or subsequent oral understanding or 

agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on either party hereto. 

D. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of each term and provision of this Lease. 

E. Invalidity. The invalidity of any provision of this Lease as determined by a court of competent 

jurisdiction will in no way affect the validity of any other provision hereof. 

F. Commission. Landlord and Tenant each warrant to the other that no real estate broker or agent 

has been used or consulted in connection with this Lease except as described in the Summary. 

G. Signature Authorization. Each individual signing this Lease represents that he/she is authorized 

to sign on behalf of their respective entity and that the entity is bound by the terms hereof. 

H. Binding Effect/Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, all of the 

covenants, obligations, conditions and provisions of this Lease shall be binding upon and shall 

inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 49 



9 

successors and assigns, but shall not operate to permit a transfer contrary to the terms of this 

Lease. 

I. Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be 

deemed to be an original. All counterparts will constitute but one and the same instrument and 

will be evidenced by any one counterpart. A photocopy or facsimile of a party's original signature 

shall be as effective as the original. 

J. Pronouns. Landlord and Tenant will include individuals male or female, singular or plural, 

corporations, partnerships or business entities, as may fit the particular party. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto affixed their respective hands and seals on the day 

and year below written. 

TENANT LANDLORD 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES Highland Community College 

OF THE UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS 

BY: BY: ____________ _ 

Its: _ ___________ _ 

Date: ____________ _ 

STANDARD FORM-UI EXTENSION APPROVED BY REAL ESTATE SERVICES & LEGAL COUNSEL 

(BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 50 



101 

r 

102 103 

' 

149 148 

'142 

141 144 145 

i40 139 

EXHIBIT A 
Floor Plan and Description of Premises 

(ATTACHED) 

106 ~J-
t 

-

l~ 

152 

154 

153 

157 158 

I 131 I 

111 

115 

117 

118 

1~ --, 
128 

1351 

116 

119 

_ _J 

7 
!24 

j 

120 

125 ___ __, 

130 

131 

133 

1132 

Mee. 9_c,.i li1 ~ ~ 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 51 



EXHIBIT 8 
Lease Addendum 

The terms of this exhibit shall control over any conflicting provisions in the Lease. 

{In the event of modifications to the Standard Form Lease all modifications would be restated as 

Exhibit B Lease Addendum) 

INTENTIONALLY DELETED 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Setvices & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 52 

11 



EXHIBIT C 
SUMMARY OF SERVICES AND UTILITIES 

(COMMERCIAL UNIT) 

The following is a summary of service and utility responsibilities of Landlord and Tenant: 

Service or Utility Item Landlord Tenant 

Dispensers for toilet paper, hand soap and hand towels in restrooms X 

Paper Supplies and waste containers (Premises} X 

Replacement light bulbs & fluorescent light tubes (Premises) X 

Ballasts and transformers for fluorescent lights, light switches and electrical X 

outlets (Building and Premises) 

Heating and air conditioning control switches X 

Janitorial service includ'ing waste removal to buildings dumpster (Premises) X 

Janitorial service for Building exterior and common areas X 

Carpet, tile and linoleum (Premises) X 

Gas (Premises) X 

Electric (Premises) X 

Water and municipal sanitary district fees X 

Window washing - exterior 111 X 

Window washing - interior X 

Landscaping and gardening X 

Snow removal X 

Cleaning of drapes, blinds, window shades (Premises) X 

Maintenance and repair of window treatments X 

Kitchen appliances X 

Sufficiently sized dumpster for Tenants refuse and disposal services X 

Pest control X 

Other: 

<11 Annually 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Not 

Page 53 

12 

Applicable 

X 



EXHIBIT D 
SUMMARY OF REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES 

The following is a summary of repairs and maintenance responsibilities of Landlord and Tenant: 

Maintenance or Repair Item Landlord Tenant 

Foundations X 

Exterior and Bearing Walls X 

Roof X 

Electrical Systems X 

Lighting Systems X 

Plumbing Systems X 

Heating Systems X 

Ventilation Systems X 

Air Conditioning Systems X 

Alarm Systems 

Plate Glass X 

Window & Window Frames X 

Gutters, Drains, Downspouts X 

Elevators X 

Floor Slabs X 

Common Areas (Interior and Exterior) X 

Ceilings X 

Interior Walls X 

Interior Doors X 

Interior Surfaces & Windows X 

Appliances & Fixtures 

Repainting of Interior Walls (every years) 

Base and/or Moldings X 

Parking Lot Area X 

other: 

U1 Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Not 

Applicable 

X 

X 

X 

Page 54 

13 



Click here to enter text. 

EXHIBIT E-1 
Work Letter 

Intentionally Deleted 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 55 

14 



EXHIBIT E-2 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

Intentionally Deleted 

UI Extension Form Lease Approved by Real Estate Services & Legal Counsel (BKW & JAS 1/23/18) 

Page 56 

15 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-D-2 

JUNE 25, 2024 

IDGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC INSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Highland Community College 
Board authorizes President Chris Kuberski to accept the proposal from First Agency for an 
insurance program as follows: intercollegiate accident and intercollegiate catastrophic at an 
annual premium not to exceed $33,670. 

BACKGROUND: With the College's insurance broker, Dimond Brothers, the College has 
reviewed its insurance program for the insurance products outlined above. The College has 
partnered with First Agency for over 20 years for intercollegiate insurance coverage and has 
been pleased with their services. The proposed premium for the annual coverages is $219 lower 
than for the previous fiscal year due to the College's claims experience. 

BOARD ACTION: _______________ _______ _ 

Page 57 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-D-3 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

PROPERTY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Highland Community College 
Board authorizes President Chris Kuberski to accept the proposal from the Illinois Counties Risk 
Management Trust (ICRMT) for an insurance program as follows: Property, Auto, General 
Liability, Educator's Legal Liability, and Umbrella at an annual premium not to exceed 
$206,000. 

BACKGROUND: With the College's insurance broker, Dimond Brothers, the College has 
reviewed its insurance program for the insurance products outlined above and reviewed options 
with various carriers. Due to cost and coverages available, the recommendation is to remain 

with the ICRMT. The College joined the ICRMT in 2016 and has been satisfied with the 
services. The proposed premium for the annual coverages is $6,722 more than for the previous 
fiscal year due to the increase in the College's property and replacement values and the claims 
experience of the College and the participants in the ICRMT pool. 

BOARD ACTION: 

Page 58 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-D-4 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

USE OF AGENCY FUND FOR 

SPORTS CENTER REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees approves the use 

of Agency funds for the cost ofrepairs to the Sports Center, including replacement of the building 

automation system, removal and replacement of the boiler, and the repair of the fire service line in 

an amount not to exceed $26,992. Funds for this purpose are available through the Agency funds. 

BACKGROUND: Several large expenditures for repairs and maintenance to the Sports Center 

have occurred throughout the fiscal year. The failure of the controller in the Sports Center 

automation system made it not possible to schedule lighting or heating/air conditioning. The 

boiler was replaced due to its age and issues such as leaking and corrosion. The fire service line 

need to be replaced to ensure adequate water supply to the fire suppression system. The YMCA 

Board of Directors has approved the expense. 

BOARD ACTION: 

Page 59 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-D-5 

JUNE 25, 2024 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

ACCEPTANCE OF BID 

NEW AGRICULTURE PUMP HOUSE 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: That the Board of Trustees authorizes 
acceptance of the low base bid meeting specifications from Larson and Larson Builders of 
Loves Park, IL of $895,500.00 for the construction of a new Agriculture Pump House at the 
agriculture plots. This bid is within the available funding for the project. 

BACKGROUND: The Highland Community College Foundation has recently installed an 
underground irrigation system to be used for educational purposes for Highland students on the 
Foundation's property at the agriculture plots. In coordination with that project, the College will 
install a "Pump House" on the land recently donated to the College by the HCC Foundation, 
which will house the underground irrigation operational and monitoring equipment, as well as 
utility connections to serve the same. 

This project is funded by a State of Illinois grant, secured by now Senator Andrew Chesney, as 
well as Highland Community College Foundation donations. 

The request for bids was advertised and five bids were submitted. 

Bids were opened at 1 :00 p.m. on June 11, 2024. 

BOARD ACTION: ______________________ _ 

Page 60 



II RICHARD L. JOHNSON 
ASSOCIATES I ARCHITECTS 

June ll, 2024 

Ms. Jill Janssen 

Highland Community College 

2998 West Pearl City Road 

Freeport, Illinois 61032 

Re: New Agriculture Pump Building for 

Highland Community College (RLJA# 24-020) 

Dear Jill: 

On June 11, 2024, bids were received for the New Agriculture Pump Building. Qualified bids were received from 

5 General Contractors. The low Base Bid was $895.500.00 and was submitted by Larson and Larson Builders, 

Loves Park, Illinois. 

See bid tab attached. 

We have worked with Larson and Larson Builders on successful projects in the past. 

We recommend awarding the project to Larson and Larson Builders based upon the Board's review and approval of 

the fonds available. We will prepare a Letter To Proceed and Owner/Contractor Agreement upon receiving the 

Board's approval. 

If you have any questions regarding the above information, please contact me at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

Rlr L. JO'iit.ON ASSOCIATES, INC. 

siJf.1j;i:m, AIA, LEED AP 

Project Architect 

cc: 24-020 file 

Page 61 



BID TAB New AG Building@ 

Highland College 

RLJA #24-020 

BIDDERS 

Gehrke Construction 
421 Grove Street 

DeKalb IL 60115 

Larson & Larson Bldrs 

5612 Industrial Ave. 

Loves Park IL 815-633-1773 

Nicam Construction 

3143 Business 20 W 

Freeport, IL 815-616-8126 

Sjostrom & Sons 

1129 Harrison Avenue 

Rockford, IL 815-226-0330 

Winter Construction 

1840 S. Walnut Ave. 

Freeoort IL 815-238-5581 

BID ADDM SITE CERTS 

GUAR. RCPT. INSPCT 

5% 2 Yes Yes 

5% 2 Yes Yes 

5% 2 Yes Yes 

5% 2 Yes Yes 

5% 2 Yes Yes 

Richard L. Johnson Associates, Inc. 

Page 62 

June 11, 2024 

BASE BID UNIT PRICES 

Removal of Unsuitable 

Soil - Cu.Yd. 

$915,915 $52.75 

$895,500 $65.00 

$1,046,000 $40.00 

$955,444 $55.00 

$970,000 $55.00 



AGENDA ITEM #VIII-D-6 

JUNE 25, 2024 

IDGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD 

FAMILY YMCA OF NORTWEST ILLINOIS 

CIDLD CARE AND TRAINING CENTER LEASE AGREEMENT 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRESIDENT: It is recommended that the Highland 

Community College Board enters into a lease agreement with the Family YMCA of Northwest 
Illinois for occupancy by the YMCA Child Care Center in Building "I" at the following monthly 

rates: 
$965 July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 

$985 July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 

The Board further authorizes the College President and Board Secretary to execute the 
agreement by appropriate signatures. 

BACKGROUND: The recommendation provides for the renewal of the lease agreement with 
the YMCA for a two-year period, with a provision of an extension of an additional year if 
renewed by the YMCA. The YMCA will be responsible for 90% of the costs for utilities, 
contractor services, and maintenance supplies and 100% of the costs for custodial services, 

custodial supplies, and telephone services. The new rates represent a 2% increase. 

BOARD ACTION: ______________________ _ 

Page 63 



Highland Community College and YMCA 

Child Care and Training Center Agreement 

This Lease Agreement (this "Lease") is effective July 1, 2024, by and between Highland 
Community College ("HCC"), and Family YMCA of Northwest Illinois ("YMCA"). The 
parties agree as follows: 

WHEREAS, HCC and the YMCA initially entered into a lease/use agreement for the 
building located at 2998 W. Pearl City Road, Freeport, Illinois 61032 on May 2, 2001; 

and 

WHEREAS, HCC and the YMCA have amended the lease on four prior occasions and 

the parties remain satisfied with the working relationship between the parties; and 

WHEREAS, the current agreement expires on June 30, 2024, and HCC has requested 
execution of a new lease agreement reflecting the nature of the relationship on a going
forward basis. 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREIN AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. PREMISES. HCC, in consideration of the lease payments provided in this Lease 

and of the covenants and agreements to be performed by YMCA as set forth 
herein, leases to YMCA Child Care and Training Center located on the Campus 
of Highland Community College (the "Premises") located at 2998 W. Pearl City 

Road, Freeport, Illinois 61032. 

2. LEGAL DESCRIPTION. A depiction of the Premises is attached as Exhibit A 

hereto. Either party, as its option, may at its own expense cause a legal 
description of the Premises to be prepared, and such legal description shall be 
incorporated into this Lease, subject to reasonable objection of the other party. 

3. TERM. The lease term will begin on July 1, 2024 and will terminate on June 30, 

2025. 

4. LEASE PAYMENTS. YMCA shall pay to HCC lease payments as indicated in 
the following table, payable on the first day of each month to HCC at 2998 W. 

Pearl City Road, Freeport, IL 61032, which address may be changed from time to 

time by the HCC. 

Time Period Amount ner Month 

July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025 $965 

July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026 $985 

5. POSSESSION. YMCA shall be entitled to continue possession on the first day 

Page 64 



of the term of this Lease, and shall yield possession to HCC on the last day of the 

term of this Lease, unless otherwise agreed by both parties in writing or in the 
event of earlier termination as provided herein. At the expiration of the term, 

YMCA shall remove its goods and effects and peaceably yield up the Premises to 

HCC in as good a condition as when delivered to YMCA, ordinary wear and tear 
excepted. 

6. USE OF PREMISES. YMCA may use the Premises only for the provision of 
child care and related services. The Premises may be used for any other purpose 
only with the prior written consent of HCC, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. YMCA shall notify HCC of any anticipated extended absence from the 
Premises not later than the first day of the extended absence. 

HCC will have preferred use of all observation areas (rooms 18, 23, 29, and 24 on 
Exhibit A), and one drop off/classroom (room 33 on Exhibit A). HCC will have 
shared use of the staff lounge (room 5 on Exhibit A) corridors, and restrooms. 

Use of shared areas and specific areas will be outlined in attachment and be 
reviewed on an annual basis. See Exhibit A. 

7. PARKING. YMCA shall be entitled to parking privileges as consistent with 

HCC Campus parking regulations. 

8. PROPERTY INSURANCE. HCC shall obtain and maintain a comprehensive 

fire and extended coverage and casualty insurance policy on the premises with a 
reputable insurance company, insuring the premises against any damage by fire or 

other casualty in an amount and on terms which are acceptable to HCC. HCC 
shall be the named insured on the policy and shall receive all payments in the 
event of a loss and YMCA shall have no interest therein. 

HCC and YMCA shall each procure and maintain at their own expense insurance 
on the contents and tangible personal property owned by each party which are in 

the subject premises. 

9. LIABILITY INSURANCE. YMCA shall maintain comprehensive general 

liability insurance on the Premises in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00, 
combined single limit per occurrence. On an annual basis, YMCA shall deliver 
certificates of insurance, or at HCC's option, copies of insurance policies to HCC 

as proof that adequate insurance is in force issued by companies reasonably 
satisfactory to HCC. HCC shall receive sixty (60) days advance written notice 
from the insurer prior to any termination of such insurance policies. HCC shall be 

named as an additional insured on all such policies. 

10. RENEWAL TERMS. Subject to the provisions of Section 28, this Lease may 
be renewed by YMCA for one additional one (1) year period by providing written 
evidence to HCC no later than 120 days prior to the expiration of the current term. 
In the event of such renewal, all terms hereof shall remain in full force and effect 
but the monthly rent shall be increased 5%. No renewal may be elected after the 

one year, absent mutual agreement of the Parties .. 

Page 65 



11. TERMINATION. YMCA may terminate this lease upon 180 days prior notice 

in the event that YMCA determines, in good faith and in its reasonable judgment, 
that YMCA's continued operations upon the Premises are not economically 
feasible. It is understood that this right to termination shall not constitute a right 
to termination for convenience, and that such right shall accrue only in the event 
that YMCA can clearly demonstrate the economic unfeasibility of its continuing 

operations on the Premises. In the event of Termination under this section, 
YMCA shall be liable for rental payments pro-rated through the date of 
termination, in addition to any other costs or charges incurred through the date of 
termination. 

12. OBLIGATIONS. HCC's obligations for maintenance shall include: 
- the roof, outside walls, and other structural parts of the building 

- the parking lot, driveways, and sidewalks 
- snow and ice removal up to 20 feet away from the entrances to the building 
- the sewer, water pipes, and other matters related to plumbing 

- the electrical wiring and systems 

- the HV AC system 
- all other items of maintenance not specifically delegated to YMCA under 

this Lease. 

YMCA's obligations for maintenance shall include: 

- reasonable and customary cleanliness 
- all custodial supplies, services, and equipment 
- snow and ice removal within 20 feet from the entrances to the building 

13. COST SHARING. YMCA shall be responsible for 90% and HCC shall be 
responsible for 10% of charges for the following utilities and services. HCC shall 
arrange and pay for the following utilities and services in connection with the 
Premises subject to the YMCA's obligation to reimburse it for 90% of the costs 

for said services: 
- electricity 
- water and sewer 
- maintenance services performed by a contractor 

- refuse disposal 
- maintenance supplies 
- Campus computer system wiring 

YMCA shall be responsible for 100% of charges for the following utilities and 

services. YMCA shall arrange and make payment for the following utilities and 

services in connection with the Premises: 
- custodial services 
- custodial supplies 
- telephone service 
- administrative computers and equipment for child care 

Any changes to above in this section must be agreed to in writing by YMCA and 

HCC. 

Page 66 



14. DESTRUCTION OR CONDEMNATION OF PREMISES. If, other than 
through the acts or omissions of the YMCA's employees and/or agents, the 

Premises are partially destroyed by fire or other casualty to an extent that prevents 
the conducting of YMCA's use of the Premises in a normal manner, and if the 
damage is reasonably repairable within sixty days after the occurrence of the 
destruction, HCC shall repair the Premises and a just proportion of the lease 

payments shall abate during the period of the repair according to the extent to 
which the Premises have been rendered untenable. However, if the damage is (a) 
not repairable within sixty days;(b) if HCC is prevented from repairing the 
damage by forces beyond HCC's control; or (c) if the property is condemned, this 

Lease shall terminate upon twenty days' written notice of such event or condition 
by either party and any unearned rent paid in advance by YMCA shall be 
apportioned and refunded to it. YMCA shall give HCC immediate notice of any 

damage to the Premises, but in no event longer than 24 hours from the date of 
damage or incident. If the premises are damaged due to the negligent acts or 
omissions of the YMCA's employees and/or agents, the lease payments shall not 
abate during any period of repair or as a result of condemnation. 

15. DEFAULTS. YMCA shall be in default of this Lease if YMCA fails to fulfill 
any lease obligation or term by which YMCA is bound. Subject to any governing 

provisions of law to the contrary, if YMCA fails to cure any financial obligation 

within 30 days after written notice of such default is provided by HCC to YMCA, 
HCC may take possession of the Premises without further notice (to the extent 
permitted by law), and without prejudicing HCC's rights to damages. In the 

alternative, HCC may elect to cure any default and the cost of such action shall be 
added to YMCA's financial obligations under this Lease. YMCA shall pay all 
costs, damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees and expenses) 
suffered by HCC by reason ofYMCA's defaults. All sums of money or charges 
required to be paid by YMCA under this Lease shall be additional rent, whether 
or not such sums or charges are designated as "additional rent". The rights 
provided by this paragraph are cumulative in nature and are in addition to any 
other rights afforded by law. 

In the event of a default by HCC, YMCA shall give HCC thirty (30) days' written 
notice of the default and if HCC fails to cure the default within said time period, 
YMCA shall have all remedies available under the terms of this Lease or Illinois 
law. In the event of such default by HCC, HCC shall pay all costs, damages and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and costs) suffered by YMCA by 

reason of the HCC default. 

16. CUMULATIVE RIGHTS. The rights of the parties under this Lease are 
cumulative, and shall not be construed as exclusive unless otherwise required by 
law. 

17. REMODELING OR STRUCTURAL IMPROVEMENTS. YMCA shall have 
the obligation to conduct any construction or remodeling (at YMCA's expense) 
that may be required to use the Premises as specified above. YMCA may also 
construct such fixtures on the Premises (at YMCA's expense) that appropriately 

Page 67 



facilitate its use for such purposes. Such construction shall be undertaken and 

such fixtures may be erected only with the prior written consent of the HCC 

which shall not be unreasonably withheld. YMCA shall not install awnings or 

advertisements on any part of the Premises without HCC's prior written consent. 
At the end of the lease term, YMCA shall be entitled to remove (or at the request 
of HCC shall remove) such fixtures, and shall restore the Premises to substantially 
the same condition of the Premises at the commencement of this Lease. Costs 
associated with approved remodeling or constructions will be the obligation of the 
YMCA unless otherwise negotiated with HCC. YMCA shall submit plans and 
specifications for HCC's approval prior to carrying out any remodeling or 
construction on the Premises, and shall conform with HCC's reasonable 
requirements for such construction, including code compliance, contractor 
insurance, and production of required lien waivers. 

18. ACCESS BY HCC TO PREMISES. Subject to YMCA's consent (which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld), HCC shall have the right to enter the Premises to 
make inspections, provide necessary services, or show the unit to prospective 
buyers, mortgagees, YMCAs or workers. However, HCC does not assume any 
liability for the care or supervision of the Premises. As provided by law, in the 
case of an emergency, HCC may enter the Premises without YMCA's consent. 

19. INDEMNITY REGARDING USE OF PREMISES. To the extent permitted by 

law, YMCA agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend HCC from and 
against any and all losses, claims, liabilities, and expenses, including reasonable 

attorney fees, if any, which HCC may suffer or incur in connection with YMCA's 
possession, use or misuse of the Premises, except HCC's act or negligence. 

20. DANGEROUS MATERIALS. YMCA shall not keep or have on the Premises 
any article or thing of a dangerous, flammable, or explosive character that might 
substantially increase the danger of fire on the Premises, or that might be 
considered hazardous by a responsible insurance company, unless the prior 
written consent of HCC is obtained and proof of adequate insurance protection is 
provided by YMCA to HCC. 

21. COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS. YMCA shall promptly comply with 
all laws, ordinances, requirements and regulations of the federal, state, county, 
municipal and other authorities, and the fire insurance underwriters. However, 
YMCA shall not by this provision be required to make alterations to the exterior 

of the building or alterations of a structural nature. 

22. EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION COORDINATION. HCC and the 
YMCA shall coordinate communication in case of HCC and/or YMCA 
emergencies. 

23. MECHANICS LIENS. Neither the YMCA nor anyone claiming through the 
YMCA shall have the right to file mechanics liens or any other kind of lien on the 
Premises and the filing of this Lease constitutes notice that such liens are invalid. 
Further, YMCA agrees to (1) give actual advance notice to any contractors, 
subcontractors or suppliers of goods, labor, or services that such liens will not be 

Page 68 



valid, and (2) take whatever additional steps that are necessary in order to keep 

the premises free of all liens resulting from construction done by or for the 
YMCA. 

24. SUBORDINATION OF LEASE. This Lease is subordinate to any mortgage 
that now exists, or may be given later by HCC, with respect to the Premises. 

25. ASSIGNABILITY/SUBLETTING. YMCA may not assign or sublease any 
interest in the Premises, nor effect a change in the majority ownership of the 
YMCA (from the ownership existing at the inception of this lease), nor assign, 
mortgage or pledge this Lease, without the prior written consent of HCC. 

26. NOTICE. Notices under this Lease shall not be deemed valid unless given or 
served in writing and forwarded by mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

HCC: 

Highland Community College 
2998 W. Pearl City Road 
Freeport, IL 61032 

YMCA: 

YMCA of Northwest Illinois 
2998 W. Pearl City Road 

Freeport, IL 61032 

Such addresses may be changed from time to time by either party by providing 
notice as set forth above. Notices mailed in accordance with the above provisions 
shall be deemed received on the third day after posting. 

27. GOVERNING LAW. This Lease shall be construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Illinois. 

28. SPORT FACILITY UPDATING & REMODELING PROJECT. Both HCC 
and the YMCA acknowledge that mutual conversations are ongoing regarding the 
remodeling of the sports facilities that are near and/or contiguous to the space 
being used by YMCA under this Agreement. Each Party acknowledges and 
commits to undertaking in good faith efforts to reach agreement and 
understanding on any modification (both temporary or permanent) to this 
Agreement necessary to undertake, during the term, any construction or 

remodeling of the same that impacts YMCA's use of the Leased Premises as set 

forth in Section 6. The YMCA acknowledges that HCC may undertake planning 

and initial construction activities intended to facilitate remodeling during the 
Lease term; provided, however that HCC hereby acknowledges and agrees that 
any such planning and initial construction activities shall be limited to those 
activities that do not unreasonably interfere with the YMCA's continuous use of 
the Lease Premises as provided in Section 6 and as required by the YMCA's 

contractual agreements with its customers. 

Page 69 



29. ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT. This Lease Agreement contains the 
entire agreement of the parties and there are no other promises, conditions, 
understandings or other agreements, whether oral or written, relating to the 
subject matter of this Lease. This Lease may be modified or amended in writing, 
if the writing is signed by the party obligated under the amendment. During the 
year prior to the end of this Lease, representatives from HCC and YMCA will 
develop and implement continuing options for sharing the cost of operation of the 
premises beyond term of this lease. This agreement shall reflect and be consistent 
with other such agreements currently in effect between HCC and YMCA. 

30. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Lease shall be held to be invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid 
and enforceable. If a court finds that any provision of this Lease is invalid or 
unenforceable, but that by limiting such provision, it would become valid and 
enforceable, then such provision shall be deemed to be written, construed, and 

enforced as so limited. 

31. WAIVER. The failure of either party to enforce any provisions of this Lease 

shall not be construed as a waiver or limitation of that party's right to 
subsequently enforce and compel strict compliance with every provision of this 

Lease. 

32. BINDING EFFECT. The provisions of this Lease shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of both parties and their respective legal representatives, 

successors and assigns. 

Highland Community College 

By: 
Chris Kuberski 
President 

Attest: _____________________ _ 

Terri Grimes 

Board Secretary 

YMCA of Northwest Illinois 

By: 
Rich Haight 
Executive Director 

Date: -----

Date: -----

Date: -----

Page 70 



Exhibit A 

CHILD CARE £ 
~ SEVERE '1/E:ATHER SHELTER N 

■ ELECTRIC SHUTDff GAS SHUTOrr ■ \,/ATER SHUTDff 

STAn" 
LDIIIIE 

~ 

ICC 
GfFJCE 

s 

imm.n:inr -:=rvc:,1 Df'FICE a 
3 

CLA=mllM 
16 

CLl\llllRDCfl 
2111 

aH!l! 
Ill 

n.r 
2e 

CDRRllllJlt 
15 

T!.1 
es 

= 

111.1.-tl-Pvrpmel 
LIA'IOl 1aa11'1 

31!! 

CLA~Dlf 
31 

tl..A!l!:Jlllrf 
27 

CLRGSIIIIJI 
l!6 

Page 71 


